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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the "Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Wecon Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”), | am pleased
to present to our shareholders the first annual report of our
Group for the year ended 31 March 2019 after the listing of
our Company (the “Listing”) on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 27
February 2019.

LISTING ON THE STOCK EXCHANGE

The shares of the Company (the "Share(s)") were successfully
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 27 February
2019. 200,000,000 Shares were issued under the share offer,
raising the net proceeds from the share offer (the “Net
Proceeds”) of approximately HK$93.5 million (after deducting
related underwriting commission and listing expenses). The
Directors believe that the Listing would enhance the Group’s
profile and bring a positive effect on the Group’s business
opportunities in the market. Moreover, the Net Proceeds would
provide the Group with the capital necessary for carrying out
its long term development plan and support the growth of the
Group.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The total revenue of our Group slightly decreased by
approximately HK$0.2 million or approximately 0.02% from
approximately HK$980.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 to approximately HK$980.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2019. For the year ended 31 March 2019, the net profit
attributable to the equity holders was approximately HK$37.2
million which decreased by approximately HK$4.2 million as
compared to that for the year ended 31 March 2018. Setting
aside the listing expenses, the adjusted net profit for year
ended 31 March 2019 was approximately HK$50.3 million as
compared to approximately HK$46.0 million for the year ended
31 March 2018.
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PROSPECTS

In the upcoming year we expect to see continuous growth in
the demand for construction works from both private and public
sectors. In addition to the intrinsic need and under-supply of
housing observed in Hong Kong, the government's plans to
revitalise industrial buildings and redevelop existing urban areas
provide ample opportunities for the Company to grow both in
revenue and in customer base.

After the Group's Listing and subsequently the Net Proceeds of
approximately HK$93.5 million being raised, the Group is well-
positioned to expand its market share, capturing much of the
opportunities listed above. The Group's strengthened financial
position has led to the ability to compete for larger contract
sums of more than HK$1 billion and attract a talented group of
experienced professionals at the management level.

Looking forward, we will continue to invest in staff development
and focus on executing our projects effectively and efficiently
to meet our customers’ need. Our customer-centric approach
has yielded long-lasting relationships with major Hong Kong
developers who have played an important role in our growth
over the years. Through our approach we have built a solid
reputation within the industry that has allowed us to widen our
customer base, | am pleased to report that we have obtained
numerous tender opportunities from new customers and hope
to secure more contracts in the coming months. While the
development of our core construction business will remain the
main focus for the Group, we will also look for further expansion
opportunities through other construction-related businesses to
maximise both the return to the Shareholders and the value of
the Group.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my gratitude
to our shareholders, customers, subcontractors and suppliers
for their continuous confidence and support. | would also like
to take this opportunity to express my sincere thanks to our
management and staff members for their hard work and loyalty
to the Group.

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

THERRR S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is a long-established main contractor in Hong
Kong and principally engaged in the provision of (i) building
construction services and (ii) repair, maintenance, alteration and
addition (“RMAA") works services. The Group provides building
construction services to customers in both the private and
public sectors. The building construction services provided by
the Group primarily consist of building works for new buildings,
including residential, commercial and industrial buildings, while
the Group’s RMAA works services include the general upkeep,
maintenance, improvement, refurbishment, alteration and
addition of existing facilities and components of buildings and
their surroundings.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had 9 major projects on hand
and each with an awarded contract sum of HK$10.0 million or
above, which includes projects in progress and projects that are
yet to commence.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group had
completed 3 major projects with an awarded contract sum of
HK$10.0 million or above.

PROSPECTS

Shares were successfully listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on 27 February 2019 (the “Listing Date”). The
Directors believe that the Listing would enhance the Group’s
profile and bring a positive effect on the Group’s business
opportunities in the market. Moreover, the Net Proceeds would
provide the Group with the capital necessary for carrying out
its long term development plan and support the growth of the
Group.

Meanwhile, the Directors believe that the Group is facing the
keen competition in the building construction and RMAA market
in Hong Kong, the conservative approach to the certification
and approval for works valuation by the customers and the
continuous increase in the direct labour and material costs
inevitably increase the overall operational risks of the Group.
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Looking forward, as supported by the policy implemented by
the Government of Hong Kong in infrastructure development
and increase in housing supply, the Directors still remain
prudently optimistic about the prospects of the building
construction and RMAA industry in Hong Kong and will closely
monitor the progress of the Group's projects.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

There are certain risks relating to the Group's operations which
could harm the Group’s business, financial condition and
operating results. Some of the relatively material risks relating
to the Group are summarised as follows:

(i) the Group’s revenue relies on the Group's contracts being
awarded through tendering or quotation processes which
are not recurrent in nature. There is no guarantee on the
Group’s continual success in project tenders or quotation
and the Group's sustainability and financial performance
may be materially and adversely affected;

(i) the Group is exposed to concentration risk of heavy
reliance on the Group's largest and major customers;

the Group relies on the Group's subcontractors to perform
generally most of the works of the Group’s projects;
any fluctuations in subcontracting costs, unsatisfactory
performance or unavailability of the Group's subcontractors
may materially and adversely affect the Group’s operations
and profitability;

(iv) the Group may suffer from cash flow shortcomings due to
mismatch in time between receipt of progress payments
from our customers, and payments to our suppliers and
subcontractors;

(v) changes in the prices and availability of raw materials
may materially and adversely affect the Group’s operating
results; and

the Group provides performance bonds in the course of the
Group's business operations which could affect the Group’s
liquidity position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRR DT

For detailed discussion of the risk factors, please refer to
the section headed “Risk Factors” in the prospectus of the
Company dated 30 January 2019 (the “Prospectus”).

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's reportable and operating segments are (i) building
construction services and (ii) RMAA works services. Details of
the segmental information of the Group is disclosed in Note 5
to the consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

The total revenue of the Group slightly decreased by
approximately HK$0.2 million or approximately 0.02% from
approximately HK$980.8 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 to approximately HK$980.6 million for the year ended 31
March 2019.

Building Construction Services

The revenue generated from the building construction services
decreased by approximately HK$30.1 million or approximately
3.7% from approximately HK$817.7 million for the year ended
31 March 2018 to approximately HK$787.6 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019, which was mainly due to the achievement
of significant progress and practical completion for the major
projects on hand during the year ended 31 March 2018.

RMAA Works Services

The revenue generated from the RMAA works services increased
by approximately HK$29.9 million or approximately 18.3% from
approximately HK$163.1 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 to approximately HK$193.0 million for the year ended 31
March 2019, which was mainly due to the increase in revenue
generated from a sizable project during the year ended 31
March 2019.
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Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales primarily consisted of subcontracting
costs, material costs, direct staff costs and site overhead. The
cost of sales of the Group decreased by approximately HK$13.4
million or approximately 1.5% from approximately HK$903.5
million for the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately
HK$890.1 million for the year ended 31 March 2019. Such
decrease was attributable to the decrease in subcontracting
costs which was partially offset by the increase in material costs,
direct staff costs and site overhead during the year.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

The gross profit of the Group increased from approximately
HK$77.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2018 to
approximately HK$90.5 million for the year ended 31 March
2019. The Group's gross profit margin was approximately
7.9% and 9.2% for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019,
respectively. The gross profit margin of the Group increased by
approximately 1.3% by comparing that for the year ended 31
March 2018 against the year ended 31 March 2019.

Building Construction Services

The gross profit of building construction services was
approximately HK$67.9 million for the year ended 31 March
2019, representing an increase of approximately HK$15.6 million
from approximately HK$52.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2018. The gross profit margin increased from approximately 6.4%
for the year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately 8.6% for
the year ended 31 March 2019 which was primarily attributable
to a significant portion of revenue contributed by the industry
building development project which had a relatively higher
gross profit margin.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRR DT

RMAA Works Services

The gross profit of RMAA works services was approximately
HK$22.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2019, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$2.4 million from approximately
HK$25.0 million for the year ended 31 March 2018. The gross
profit margin declined from approximately 15.3% for the
year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately 11.7% for the
year ended 31 March 2019 which was mainly attributable to
a significant portion of revenue contributed by one sizable
project which had a relatively lower gross profit margin, as a
result of the higher subcontracting cost for gases and electrical
installation.

Other Income and Gains

The other income and gains of the Group decreased by
approximately HK$1.7 million, from approximately HK$5.8
million for year ended 31 March 2018 to approximately HK$4.1
million for year ended 31 March 2019. The decrease was
primarily due to the decrease of (i) dividend income; (ii) interest
income from other financial assets at amortised cost; and (iii)
exchange gain.

Administrative Expenses

The administrative expenses increased by approximately
HK$15.1 million, or representing approximately 46.7%, from
approximately HK$32.3 million for the year ended 31 March
2018 to approximately HK$47.4 million for year ended 31 March
2019. The increase was mainly due to the increase of (i) listing
expenses; (ii) staff cost; and (iii) exchange loss.

Finance Costs

The finance costs increased by approximately HK$356,000, from
approximately HK$244,000 for the year ended 31 March 2018 to
approximately HK$600,000 for the year ended 31 March 2019.
The increase was mainly due to the increase in the (i) interest
expense on bank borrowings; and (ii) interest expense on
finance leases.
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Income Tax Expenses

The income tax expenses increased by approximately
HK$0.5 million, or representing approximately 5.6%, from
approximately HK$8.9 million for the year ended 31 March 2018
to approximately HK$9.4 million for the year ended 31 March
2019. The increase was primarily attributable to an increase
in income generated from building construction services. The
effective tax rate was approximately 17.7% and 20.2% for the
years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019, respectively. The increase
of approximately 2.5% was mainly due to the increase in the
non-deductible tax item of listing expenses.

Net Profit and Adjusted Net Profit

As a result of the foregoing, the profit for the year of our Group
decreased by approximately HK$4.2 million, or approximately
10.1%, from approximately HK$41.4 million for the year ended
31 March 2018 to approximately HK$37.2 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019. Setting aside the listing expenses
amounted to approximately HK$13.1 million and approximately
HK$4.6 million for the year ended 31 March 2019 and 2018,
respectively, the Group's adjusted net profit for the year ended
31 March 2019 was approximately HK$50.3 million as compared
to approximately HK$46.0 million for the year ended 31 March
2018. The adjusted net profit margin (excluding the listing
expenses) for the years ended 31 March 2018 and 2019 were
approximately 4.7% and 5.1%, respectively, representing a
slightly increase of approximately 0.4%.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2019, our Group has a total of 181 full-time
employees (2018: 141). The Group has developed its human
resources policies and procedures to determine the individual
remuneration with reference to factors such as performance,
merits, responsibilities of each individual, market conditions,
etc. Remuneration packages are normally reviewed on a regular
basis. Apart from salary payments, other staff benefits including
provident fund contributions, medical insurance coverage,
annual leave, options which may be granted under the share
option scheme adopted by the Company on 21 January 2019.
The total staff costs (excluding directors’ remuneration) incurred
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$76.1 million (2018: approximately HK$60.8
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRR DT

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS, MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND ASSOCIATED COMPANIES

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 23
March 2018 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Group
completed the group reorganisation on 21 December 2018 (the
"Reorganisation”) in preparation for the listing of the Shares on
the Stock Exchange pursuant to which the Company became
the holding company of the Group. For further information
in relation to the Reorganisation, please refer to the section
headed "History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in
the Prospectus. Apart from the Reorganisation, there were no
significant investments held, material acquisitions or disposals
of subsidiaries and associated companies during the year ended
31 March 2019.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the Group has capital commitments in
respect of purchase of computer hardware and software, which
had been contracted but not provided for in the consolidated
financial statements, in the total amount of approximately
HK$1.3 million. Such amount includes approximately HK$1.1
million which would be settled through Net Proceeds.

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases are payable within one
year with approximately HK$2.5 million (2018: approximately
HK$4.2 million within one year and approximately HK$2.2 million
in the second to fifth years inclusive respectively).

Operating lease payments mainly represent rental payable
by the Group for certain of its office properties, car parks,
warehouses and staff quarter. Lease for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to two years.
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CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Save as disclosed in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities as at 31 March 2019.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has a minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions and assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Hong Kong dollar. As such, the
Directors believe that the Group’s risk in foreign exchange
is insignificant so the Group is not necessary to arrange any
foreign currency hedging policy currently.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 March 2019, the gearing ratio of the Group, which is
calculated by dividing total of bank borrowings, bank overdrafts
and obligation under a finance lease with the total equity of the
Group, was approximately 4.6% (2018: Nil)

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The Group has principally funded the liquidity and capital
requirements through capital contributions from the
shareholders, bank borrowings and net cash generated from
operating activities.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had pledged bank deposits,
time deposits and cash and bank balances of approximately
HK$194.8 million (2018: approximately HK$86.7 million). The
gearing ratio of the Group as at 31 March 2019 (defined as the
total of bank borrowings, bank overdrafts and obligation under
a finance lease divided by total equity) was approximately 4.6%
(2018: Nil). As at 31 March 2019, the current ratio of the Group
was approximately 1.9 times (2018: approximately 1.7 times).

The financial resources presently available to the Group include
bank borrowings and the Net Proceeds, our Directors believe
that the Group have sufficient working capital for our future
requirements.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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On the date of incorporation of the Company, the Company
had an issued share capital of HK$0.01 divided into one Share
and on the same date, the Company further allotted and issued
99 Shares. On 21 January 2019, the authorised issued share
capital of the Company increased from HK$380,000 divided into
38,000,000 Shares to HK$50,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000
Shares. On 21 December 2018, five Shares were issued for
the Reorganisation. On 26 February 2019, 200,000,000 Shares
were allotted and issued under the Share Offer (as defined
in the Prospectus) and 599,999,895 Shares were allotted and
issued pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the
Prospectus). Upon the Listing of the Company, the Company
had an issued share capital of HK$8,000,000 divided into
800,000,000 Shares.

The Company's shares were successfully listed on the Stock
Exchange on 27 February 2019. There has been no change in
the capital structure of the Group since then.

DEBTS AND CHARGE ON ASSETS

The total interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group,
including a bank borrowing and finance lease payables,
amounted to approximately HK$11.1 million as at 31 March 2019
(2018: Nil). As at 31 March 2019, the banking facilities of the
Group were secured by (i) the Group's pledged bank deposits;
and (ii) corporate guarantee executed by the Group.

Borrowings were denominated in Hong Kong dollar and
interests on borrowings were mainly charged at floating rate.
The Group currently does not have any interest rate hedging
policy while the Group pays vigilant attention to and monitors
interest rate risks continuously and cautiously.
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Shares were successfully listed on the Stock Exchange on
27 February 2019. The Net Proceeds, after deducting related
underwriting commission and listing expenses, of approximately
HK$93.5 million were and will be utilised in accordance with the
section headed of “Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the
Prospectus.

The Net Proceeds from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019 were
utilised as follows:
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HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million HKS$ million

BEET E&EET BE&ET BEET

Strengthen the capacity in MARMINEBAEZEEZETF

undertaking more building BEAREEREETIRA

construction and RMAA works B evse N

projects in Hong Kong 66.7 5.2 52 61.5
Strengthen the manpower hneg A 14.4 0.5 —* 14.4
Upgrade and renovation of office  ##AZEFHKREIH 3.6 0.5 - 3.6
Develop engineering and T2 Bl T2 Ml

technological innovation 2.9 1.5 - 2.9
General working capital —MREEED 5.9 2.0 2.0 3.9

93.5 9.7 7.2 86.3

* Represents the amount less than HK$0.1 million

* EBOROIBEEETNER
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEETRR DT

From the Listing Date to 31 March 2019, the Group utilised less
than HK$0.1 million for strengthening manpower and did not
utilise the proceeds for upgrading and renovating the office
and developing engineering and technological innovation. The
delay in utilisation of the proceeds in the abovementioned areas
were due to the delay in expansion of the Group's new office.
The Group will continue to apply the Net Proceeds planned to
be applied during the period between the Listing Date and 31
March 2019 in accordance to the disclosure in the Prospectus as
soon as practicable.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Environmental policies and performance are set out in the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”, which
will be published on the Stock Exchange's website at
"www.hkexnews.hk” and the Company’'s website at
“www.wecon.com.hk” according to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the "Listing Rules”).
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

ERELRE

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieving and maintaining
the highest standard of corporate governance as the Board
recognises the importance of sound corporate governance
to the long term and continuing success of the Group. The
corporate governance principles of the Group emphasise
transparency, accountability and independence. The Board
commits to continuously review and enhance the Group's
corporate governance practices and procedures for the best
interest of the Company'’s shareholders.

Pursuant to paragraph 36 of Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules,
the Board is pleased to present the corporate governance
report to the Company for the year ended 31 March 2019.

During the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019, the
Company has complied with the applicable code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (“CG Code”) in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules except the deviation stipulated
below.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman (the
“Chairman”) and chief executive officer (the "CEQ") should be
separated and should not be performed by the same individual.
Since the Listing Date up to the date of this report, Mr. Tsang
Ka Yip (“Mr. KY Tsang"”) is the Chairman of the Board and
the CEO of the Company. As the nature and extent of our
Group's operations and Mr. KY Tsang’s in-depth knowledge
and experience in the industry in which we operate and his
familiarity with the operations of our Group, the Board believes
that it is the most beneficial to the Group and the shareholders
as a whole to have Mr. KY Tsang acting as the Chairman of the
Board and CEO of the Company.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”)
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors. The
Company has made specific enquiries of each of the Director
and all Directors have confirmed that they have fully complied
with the required standard set out in the Model Code during
the period from the Listing Date to 31 March 2019 in response
to the specific enquiry by the Company.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The key responsibilities of the Board include formulation of the
Group's overall strategies, the setting of management targets
and supervision of management performance.

Composition

The Board comprises a total of six directors, with three
executive Directors (the "EDs”) and three independent non-
executive Directors (the “INEDs"”). Board members are listed
below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (Chairman and CEO)
(appointed on 23 March 2018)
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip (appointed on 25 June 2018)
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry (appointed on 25 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel (appointed on 21 January 2019)
Dr. Lau Chi Keung (appointed on 21 January 2019)

Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond (appointed on 21 January 2019)

A half of the Board was made up of the INEDs, one of whom

had appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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In compliance with the requirements set out in Rule 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules, the Board consists of three INEDs from
the Listing Date to 31 March 2019, one of them, namely Mr.
Sze Kwok Wing Nigel, possesses of appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise. After the Listing and up to the date of this report,
the number of INEDs represents at least one-third of the Board
which is in compliance with Rule 3.10A. As such, the Company
believes that there is a sufficient independence element in the
Board to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the
Company.

The Company has signed a service agreement with each of
the INEDs. The commencement date of each of the service
agreement is 27 February 2019, the date of the Listing, for a
term of three years. Each of the INEDs has made an annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all INEDs meet
the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and are independent in accordance with the terms of the
guidelines.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the articles of association of the
Company (the “Articles”), one-third of the Directors shall retire
from office by rotation at each annual general meeting and
every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
once every 3 years. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. According to Article 83 of the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board shall hold office until the first general
meeting after his appointment and be subject to re-election
at such meeting. As such, all Directors shall retire at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company and shall
be eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

Saved as disclosed in the section “Biographical Details of
Directors and Senior Management” in this report, there is
no financial, business, family or other material or relevant
relationship among members of the Board and senior
management.
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Meetings and Attendance

The attendance of individual members of the Board at various
meetings between the Listing Date and 31 March 2019, as well
as the number of such meetings held, are set our below:

ERRHESR

RN ETBEZE2019A3A3B M E5<
KMELESEERSZRITAEIINNOT -

Number of meetings attended/held

HEBITEBRNRE
Audit Nomination Remuneration
Board Committee Committee Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
= EREEEY REEES FMEES
a2 83 83 =
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip @ BRESLEO 1/1 N/A 1/1 1/1
TEA
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip ey 11 N/A N/A N/A
TEA 3 A T3 A
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry SRS 1/1 N/A N/A N/A
TEA TEA TiEA
Independent Non-Executive BIAEHITES
Directors
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel @ MR A @ 1/1 1/1 11 11
Dr. Lau Chi Keung ©@ 2lEmEL © 1/1 1/1 1/1 N/A
TEA
Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond @ BRI A @ 1/1 1/1 N/A 11
TEA
1. Chairman of the Board 1. BEEEERE
2. Chairman of the Audit Committee 2. BREEGFR
3. Chairman of the Nomination Committee 3. REEEREE
4. Chairman of the Remuneration Committee 4. FHZEEEEE
Board Meetings EEZ2gR

There was one Board meeting held between the Listing Date
and 31 March 2019. Subsequent to 31 March 2019 and up
to the date of this annual report, a Board meeting was held
on 26 June 2019 to approve the consolidated annual results
announcement for the year ended 31 March 2019 and consider
the recommendation for payment of a final dividend.

In respect of code provision A.2.7 of the CG code, the Chairman
of the Board should at least annually hold meetings with the
non-executive Directors (including INEDs) without the presence
of the executive Directors.
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As Mr. Tsang Ka Yip, the Chairman of the Board, is also an
executive Director, the Company has deviated from this code
provision as it is not practicable. The INEDs could communicate
with the Chairman of the Board directly at any time through
other means (such as telephone or email) to give their opinions
and share their views on the Company's affairs. It is therefore
considered that there are ample opportunities for the Chairman
of the Board to communicate with the INEDs without the
presence of the executive Directors.

Directors’ Training and Professional Development

In compliance with the code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code,
all Directors shall participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skill
to ensure that they obtain the updated and relevant information
regarding to the Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements. During the year ended 31 March 2019, the
Company arranged a training session provided by our Hong
Kong legal adviser to all the Directors as continuing professional
trainings. The training covered topics including the Listing
Rules, the CG code and the disclosure of inside information.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) pursuant to requirement of the CG Code. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of having a
diverse Board to enhance the quality of its performance.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced
development, the Company sees increasing diversity at the
Board level as an essential element in supporting the attainment
of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development.
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In designing the Board’'s composition, Board diversity has
been considered from a wide range of aspects, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural background and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience
and qualifications, skills, knowledge and length of service,
and any other factors that the Board may consider relevant
and applicable from time to time. High emphasis is placed on
ensuring a balanced composition of skills and experience at the
Board level in order to provide a range of perspectives, insights
and challenge that enable the Board to discharge its duties
and responsibilities effectively, support good decision making
in view of the core businesses and strategy of the Group, and
support succession planning and development of the Board. For
achieving an optimal Board, additional measurable objectives
and specific diversity targets may be set and reviewed from
time to time to ensure their appropriateness.

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company's
nomination policy and will take into account this policy. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution
that the selected candidates will bring to the Board, having
due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board and also
the needs of the Board without focusing on a single diversity
aspect.

The Board will take opportunities to increase the proportion
of female members over time when selecting and making
recommendation on suitable candidates for Board
appointments. The Board would ensure that appropriate
balance of gender diversity is achieved with reference
to stakeholders’ expectation and international and local
recommended best practices, with the ultimate goal of bringing
the Board to gender parity. The Board also aspires to having an
appropriate proportion of directors who have direct experience
in the Group's core markets, with different ethnic backgrounds,
and reflecting the Group's strategy.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established a number of functional committees
in compliance with the relevant Listing Rules for assisting the
Board to oversee specific aspects of the Company’s affairs and
helping it in the execution of its responsibilities. Specific written
terms of reference of these committees clearly outline the
committees’ authority and duties, which require the committees
to report back on their decisions and recommendations to the
Board. Currently, three committees have been established,
i.e. the audit committee (the "Audit Committee”), the
nomination committee (the “Nomination Committee”) and the
remuneration committee (the “Remuneration Committee”).

Audit Committee

The Audit Committee of the Company was established on 21
January 2019 with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deals with its authority and duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) maintaining
the relationship with the Company's auditor; (b) reviewing
the Company's financial information; (c) overseeing the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems; and (d) overseeing the Company's
continuing connected transactions. The full version of the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the Stock
Exchange's website at “www.hkexnews.hk” and the Company’s

website at “www.wecon.com.hk”.

The Audit Committee is made up of three INEDs including Mr.
Sze Kwok Wing Nigel (Chairman), Dr. Lau Chi Keung and Mr.
Chan Tim Yiu Raymond.

The Audit Committee held one committee meeting between the
Listing Date and 31 March 2019 with external auditor without
the presence of the executive Directors to discuss the statutory
audit scope and pre-audit planning of the Group.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee of the Company was established on
21 January 2019 with specific written terms of reference which
clearly deals with its authority and duties.

The Nomination Committee is mainly responsible for (a)
reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually
and making recommendations on any proposed changes to the
Board to complement of the Company’s corporate strategy;
(b) identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated of directorships;
(c) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of the Directors and succession planning for
Directors in particular the Chairman of the Board and the CEOQ;
and (d) assessing the independence of the INEDs and reviewing
the INEDs' annual confirmations on their independence and
making the disclosure of its review results in the corporate
governance report. The full version of the terms of reference of
the Nomination Committee is available on the Stock Exchange's
website at “www.hkexnews.hk” and the Company’s website at
“www.wecon.com.hk”.

The Nomination Committee is made up of three members
including Dr. Lau Chi Keung (Chairman), Mr. Sze Kwok Wing
Nigel and Mr. Tsang Ka Yip.

The Nomination Committee held one committee meeting
between the Listing Date and 31 March 2019 to review and
consider the composition of the Board, the succession planning
for Directors and the existing terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee.
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Nomination criteria

Pursuant to the mandatory disclosure requirements effective in

2019, the Company should disclose its policy for nomination of

directors in the summary of work performed by the Nomination

Committee in its corporate governance report. In evaluating

and selecting any candidate for the directorship, the following

criteria should be considered:

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

character and integrity;

qualifications including professional qualifications, skills,
knowledge and experience, and diversity aspects under the
Board Diversity Policy that are relevant to the Company's
business and corporate strategy;

any measurable objectives adopted for achieving diversity
on the Board;

for independent non-executive Directors, whether the
candidate would be considered independent with reference
to the independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules;

any potential contributions the candidate can bring to
the Board in terms of qualifications, skills, experience,
independence and gender diversity;

willingness and ability to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a member of the Board and/or Board
committee(s) of the Company; and

such other perspectives that are appropriate to the
Company's business and succession plan and where
applicable may be adopted and/or amended by the Board
and/or the Nomination Committee from time to time for
nomination of directors and succession planning.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREB®RE

REERA

RIBR2019F LM RBIERBERE - AR
AERECREAREAZIREZEGRETH

TEMZHHBEHIRBESHER - EilH
REEMAIREAETESR - EEEAT
RAE
() miREHE
(i) B BEFEER - i SAFERK

5 UNRESEKEZ TLEBER TR
BARNRERREBEBENZ TA
=

(iii)

(iv)

(vii)

BIZRERAF

EEgRERSTTEMEMOEMA AT
ERF

B IFMITESMS - RIBELHARR
FrEl 2 B ARl - (REAR TS HAR
RBIANTL

REARLERE ~ 388~ &~ WU
LR Z T REERELMNEMELE
BRL

EREE R B EMIT R R REEIT
BAEEEREN, REELESLE
MEBE &

ﬁﬁﬁﬁ/\zﬁ/‘ﬂ%ﬁ&%fﬁ%iﬂﬁ(ﬁuﬁ

AR REEE R FEREEET
Hﬂm%ﬁ&/i{? RIABE SRR LT
AHEIZ B o

F#32018/2019 25



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREB®RE

Nomination Procedures

The Company has put in place the following director nomination

procedures:

Appointment of New and Replacement Directors

(i)

(i)

If the Board determines that an additional or replacement
Director is required, it will deploy multiple channels for
identifying suitable director candidates, including referral
from Directors, shareholders, management, advisors of the
Company and external executive search firms.

Upon compilation and interview of the list of potential
candidates, the relevant Nomination Committee will
shortlist candidates for consideration by the Nomination
Committee/Board based on the selection criteria and such
other factors that it considers appropriate. The Board
has the final authority on determining suitable director
candidate for appointment.

Re-election of Directors and Nomination from Shareholders

(i

26

Where a retiring Director, being eligible, offers himself
for re-election, the Board shall consider and, if consider
appropriate, recommend such retiring Director to stand for
re-election at a general meeting. A circular containing the
requisite information on such retiring Director will be sent
to shareholders prior to a general meeting in accordance
with the Listing Rules.

Any shareholder of the Company who wishes to nominate
a person to stand for election as a Director at a general
meeting must lodge with the company secretary of the
Company within the lodgement period specified in the
relevant shareholder circular (a) a written nomination of the
candidate, (b) written confirmation from such nominated
candidate of his willingness to stand for election, and
(c) biographical details of such nominated candidate
as required under the Listing Rules. Particulars of the
candidate so proposed will be sent to all shareholders for
information by a supplementary circular.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee of the Company was established
on 21 January 2019 with specific written terms of reference
which clearly deals with its authority and duties.

The Remuneration Committee is mainly responsible for (a)
making recommendations to the Board on the Company's
policy and structure for all Directors, the senior management
of the Group and on the establishment of a formal and
transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
(b) determining, making recommendations to the Board,
considering and approving the remuneration package of
individual executive Directors and senior management and the
compensation arrangements relating to loss or termination of
office or appointment; and (c) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with reference to the
Board's corporate goals and objectives. The full version of the
terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee is available
on the Stock Exchange’s website at “www.hkexnews.hk” and
the Company's website at www.wecon.com.hk.

The Remuneration Committee is made up of three members
including Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond (Chairman), Mr. Tsang Ka
Yip and Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel.

The Remuneration Committee held one committee meeting
between the Listing Date and 31 March 2019 to review and
approve the remuneration package of the Executive Directors
of the Company.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration in the Group and the five
highest paid individuals are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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Senior management’s remuneration

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration paid to the members of the senior management
by band during the year ended 31 March 2019 is set out below:

Remuneration bands (HK$)
FHENEE (B T)

AR EEE R

BIECEE AT BEXEB.1.505
REE2019F38NBIEEE  INTFER
EEBIRSEEESMFIOT ¢

Number of person(s)

A

Nil to 1,000,000
1,000,001 to 1,500,000

Z 21,000,000
1,000,001 1,500,000

5
1

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid or payable
to the external auditor of the Company, Ernst & Young, in
respect of the audit and non-audit services were as follows:

B 37 1% BUED 3 A

RBEHA - AR SSFZBRE -
1 F AR RIS ERAD %2 K & 5 S TS P Y
HET

Remuneration

Services rendered paid/payable
B RMHERE BB HH
HK$’'000
FET
Audit services Fit RS
— Annual audit services —FEEARSE 1,300
Non-audit services B AR
— Acting as reporting accountants for the —EERRTRAOEEZAER L2
listing of the shares of the Company AR sTED
on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange 3,200
— Others —H At 10
4,510
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Company should have a dividend
policy and disclose such policy in its annual report. The

Company has on 21 January 2019 adopted a divided policy (the

“Dividend Policy”), and the summary of which is set out below:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

In deciding whether to propose a dividend and in
determining the dividend amount, the Board shall take into
account, inter alia:i—

—
&

the general financial condition of the Group;

T

capital and debt level of the Group;
future cash requirements and availability for business

—
(g
-~

operations, business strategies and future development
needs;

any restrictions on payment of dividends that may be
imposed by the Group's lenders;

(e) the general market conditions; and

(f) any other factors that the Board considers appropriate.

The payment of the dividend by the Company is also
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Law of
the Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the
Company. Any final dividends declared by the Company
must be approved by an ordinary resolution of the
shareholders at an annual general meeting and must not
exceed the amount recommended by the Board. The Board
may from time to time pay to the shareholders such interim
and/or special dividends as it considers to be justified by
the profits of the Group.

The Board endeavours to strike a balance between the
shareholders’ interests and prudent capital management
with a sustainable Dividend Policy. The Board will review
the Dividend Policy from time to time and may exercise at
its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the policy at any time as it deems fit and necessary.

Details of dividends are disclosed in note 12 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
financial statements affairs of the Group.

The statement of the auditor, Ernst & Young, about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements of the Group is set
out in the independent auditor’s report on pages 68 to 76 of
this annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to any events
or conditions which may cast significant doubt upon the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The company secretary supports the Board by ensuring the
Board policy and procedures are followed. The company
secretary is also responsible for advising the Board on corporate
governance matters.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company
Secretary”), Ms. Tsang Lee Mei (“Ms. Tsang"”), who is also the
financial controller of the Company, is a full-time employee of
the Company. During the year ended 31 March 2019, Ms. Tsang
undertook no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training
as required under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. Her biography
is set out on page 43 of this annual report in the section of
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

M

@

General Meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide a good
opportunity for communication between the shareholders
of the Company and the Board. An annual general meeting
of the Company shall be held in each year and at such time
and place to be determined by the Board. Each general
meeting, other than an annual general meeting, shall be
called an extraordinary general meeting.

The first general meeting of the Company is scheduled to
be held on Thursday, 29 August 2019 (the “2019 AGM"). A
circular and a notice of the 2019 AGM containing, among
other matters, further information relating to the 2019 AGM
will be despatched to the shareholders of the Company in
accordance with the Articles, the Listing Rules and other
applicable laws and regulations.

The way in which Shareholders can convene an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”)

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles, the Board may
whenever it thinks fit call EGM. Any one or more
shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company shall at all times have the right,
by written requisition to the Board or the Secretary of the
Company, to require an EGM to be called by the Board for
the transaction of any business specified in such requisition;
and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty one (21)
days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene
such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of
the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the
Company.
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The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director

Pursuant to Article 85 of the Articles, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be eligible
for election as a Director at any general meeting unless
a notice signed by a shareholder (other than the person
to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and vote at the
meeting for which such notice is given of his intention to
propose such person for election and also a notice signed
by the person to be proposed of his willingness to be
elected shall have been lodged at the head office or at the
registration office provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such notice(s) are given, shall be at
least seven (7) days and that (if the notices are submitted
after the despatch of the notice of the general meeting
appointed for such election) the period for lodgment
of such notice(s) shall commence on the day after the
despatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed
for such election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

The procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

Any shareholder(s) of the Company who wish to raise his/
her/their enquiries concerning the Company to the Board
may deliver his/her/their written enquiry(ies) to the principal
place of business of the Company in Hong Kong at 18/F.,
Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244 — 252 Des Voeux Road,
Central, Hong Kong for the attention of the Chairman of
the Board and the Company Secretary. Upon receipt of the
enquiries, the Company would reply as soon as possible.
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INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company has adopted shareholders communication policy
with the objective of ensuring timely, transparent and accurate
communications between the shareholders and the Company.

The Company has established several ways to communicate
with the shareholders as follows:

(1) the annual general meetings and other general meetings
of the Company are the primary communication forum
between the Company and the shareholders. The Board
members, appropriate senior executives and external
auditor will attend the general meetings to answer the
shareholders’ questions;

(2) the corporate communications such as (i) annual reports,
(i) interim reports, (iii) notices of meeting, (iv) circulars and
(v) forms of proxy are available on the Stock Exchange's
website at “www.hkexnews.hk” and the Company’s website
at “www.wecon.com.hk”:

(3) periodic announcements are made through the Stock
Exchange's website at “www.hkexnews.hk” and the
Company’s website at “www.wecon.com.hk”;

(4) the Tricor Investor Services Limited, the Hong Kong branch
share registrar of the Company, serves the shareholders in
respect of share registration, dividend payment and related
matters; and

(5) the corporate information is made available from time to
time on the Company’s website at “www.wecon.com.hk”.

The Company is committed to maintain effective and timely
dissemination of the Group's information to shareholders and
potential investors. Any enquiries to the Board or the Company
may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

Since the Listing Date to the date of this annual report, there
was no changes in the Company’s memorandum of association
and the Articles.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board undertakes to periodically review the internal control
and risk management systems of the Group to ensure their
effectiveness and efficiency and is responsible for maintaining
effective internal control system of the Group. The Directors
believe that effectiveness of the internal control system can
avoid or reduce risks which can cause loss or reputational
damage to the Group.

An internal audit function is set up to identify, monitor and
manage the key risks area associated with the business activities
in relation to the financial and operational matters/practices of
the Group and to provide its findings and any recommendations
for improvement to the Audit Committee. The system includes
a defined management structure with segregation of duties and
a cash management system such as monthly reconciliation of
bank accounts.

With respect to internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of insider information, the Group has a strict
prohibition on the unauthorised use of confidential or insider
information in the staff handbook.

Prior to the Listing, the Company arranged a training session
provided by our Hong Kong legal adviser to all Directors as
continuing professional trainings. Such training covered the
topic of the disclosure of inside information.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESREREERNEEFR

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (“Mr. KY Tsang”), aged 66, was appointed
as our Director on 23 March 2018 and was redesignated as
our executive Director on 23 January 2019. Mr. KY Tsang is
the chairman and chief executive officer of our Group, and a
managing director of all our subsidiaries. He is responsible for
the overall strategic planning and business development as well
as executing the overall operation of our Group.

Mr. KY Tsang has over 40 years of experience in civil
engineering, building and construction industry. Prior to
founding our Group, Mr. KY Tsang worked as a project manager
in various construction contractors in Hong Kong, where he
commenced his career in the engineering and construction
industry. From July 1974 to August 1978, Mr. KY Tsang worked
in Wong & Ouyang & Associates Architects and Engineers
Hong Kong in contract section and was mainly responsible for
contract administration, preparation of tender specification and
tender documents. From August 1978 to October 1979, Mr.
KY Tsang worked in T.K. Shen Construction Co. as a project
manager and was mainly responsible for project supervision
and liaising with clients. From October 1979 to February 1982,
Mr. KY Tsang worked in Leon Eng. & Const. Co. Ltd. as a
project manager; and was subsequently promoted to executive
director in October 1979 and was mainly responsible for project
supervision. Mr. KY Tsang worked in Hing Lee Construction
Co., Ltd as contract manager from March 1982 to February
1984 and was mainly responsible for contract administration,
project management, site personnel management, preparation
of building estimates and all works in connection with tender

documents.

HITES

BREXRE(TBRERE])  665% © 102018
FIRABREZEREF I MN2019F1H23
FBRERATES - BEREXLE/LAEE T
EFRTHEE - TEAEHNBRRINESE
B - AR ERAEENEBRERE N
EHERANAITERZE -

BREFENLIATRE  EFRERBESE
BEEBAFLR  BRELLERTIRERE
EXRRFAEBELE AV AKEREES
BZEREEARBETERBKLE - R1974
FITAE978F8A MM EHREXRLER
Wong & Ouyang & Associates Architects
and Engineers Hong Kongff B & #9380 =
B IZREANITHRER REZEER
1R RIRAZ A o 7197858 B £ 19794107
Hif > BRELENERREEGRAAME
BEAKE T288RBBEANERP
Bt 4% o PA1979F 108 2198242 A HAfE -
RE S £ Leon Eng. & Const. Co. Ltd.fE
BUAB IR BERINM979FI0A BT R
TEF TEAREHER - N1982F3A
Z1984F2 A8 - @RE X EMHing Lee
Construction Co., LtdEBEHKIE - =2
BEANTHRER HAERE MBAFE
B REEEMEREERERIZAEREX
o

BIZRABRAT  FH2018/2019 35



BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
BEEREREERNBERS

Mr. KY Tsang obtained Certificate of Land Surveying and
Higher Certificate of Building Technology from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic in July 1973 and November 1975 respectively. Mr.
KY Tsang also obtained an Industrial Management Diploma
from Institution of Industrial Managers in August 1983. In
March 2017, Mr. KY Tsang also received a Master’s Degree
for Engineering Management from University of Technology,
Sydney. Since October 2017, Mr. KY Tsang has been admitted
as fellow of Hong Kong Institute of Construction Manager. Mr.
KY Tsang is one of the controlling shareholders, and the father
of Mr. Philip Tsang and Mr. Jerry Tsang.

Mr. KY Tsang was as a member of the Registered Contractors'’
Disciplinary Board Panel by the Housing and Land Bureau from
1999 to 2005. From 2007 to 2009, Mr. KY Tsang had also been
appointed as the Vice Chairman of Building Committee of The
Hong Kong Construction Association. From 2008 to 2009, Mr.
KY Tsang served as the President of Rotary Club of Hong Kong
Northwest. In 2013 to 2015, Mr. KY Tsang assumed the office
of a Board Director of Tung Wah Group of Hospitals. Since
April 2017, Mr. KY Tsang was admitted as Council Member
of Hong Kong Construction Association. Since April 2017,
Mr. KY Tsang has become the Vice Chairman of the Small &
Medium Enterprise Committee of Hong Kong Construction
Association. Since November 2016, Mr. KY Tsang held the post
of an independent manager of the Incorporated Management
Committee by TWGHSs Tsui Tsin Tong School.
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Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip (“Mr. Philip Tsang”), aged 37, was
appointed as the deputy director of Wecon Limited in August
2012. He was appointed as our Director on 25 June 2018 and
was re-designated as our executive Director on 23 January
2019. He is responsible for the overall construction projects
management and daily operation of our Group.

Mr. Philip Tsang joined our Group in November 2008 as a
project coordinator of Wecon Limited before he left our Group
in May 2010. Mr. Philip Tsang has returned to our Group since
August 2012 as deputy director of Wecon Limited. Mr. Philip
Tsang studied from Santa Monica College from year of 2000 to
2002 without obtaining accredited certificates. Mr. Philip Tsang
is the son of Mr. KY Tsang and the elder brother of Mr. Jerry
Tsang.

Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry (“Mr. Jerry Tsang”), aged 32, was
appointed as our Director on 25 June 2018 and was re-
designated as executive Director on 23 January 2019. He is
responsible for the overall administrative, information system,
financial and human resources planning of our Group.

Mr. Jerry Tsang joined our Group in March 2010 as an
investment executive of Wecon Limited. Mr. Jerry Tsang
obtained the Diploma of Commerce from Melbourne Institute
of Business and Technology in March 2008 and received a
degree of Bachelor of Arts (Business Enterprise) from University
of Birmingham in September 2013. Mr. Jerry Tsang is the son of
Mr. KY Tsang and the younger brother of Mr. Philip Tsang.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. Lau Chi Keung ("Dr. Lau”), aged 64, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 21 January 2019. He
is primarily responsible for providing independent advice to
our Board. He is currently a director of Fong On Construction
Limited, Fong On Geotechnics Limited, Po Shing Construction
Limited, James Lau & Associates Limited and the executive
director and chief executive officer of Shing Chi Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 1741).

Dr. Lau has over 40 years of experience in engineering. Dr.
Lau worked as a graduate engineer in Ho Chung, Wallace
Evans & Company Limited in August 1978 with his last position
held as an engineer in 1984. He was then employed by WS
Atkins (Services) Limited as a group engineer with his last
position held as a senior group engineer and head of the soil-
structure interaction group from May 1988 to August 1994. Dr.
Lau worked as an adjunct professor at The City University of
Hong Kong from June 2006 to June 2012 and The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University from April 2002 to March 2005. He has
re-joined The Hong Kong Polytechnic University as an adjunct
professor since March 2016.

Dr. Lau was admitted to memberships of the following
institutions and bodies:

Name of institution Membership grade

BAFITES

X BELE(TEEE ) 645% ° F2019F
TA2IBEZERBIUIERNITES - HIRE
BREEZBERAR RELETNERAF
REEBBRAA - BIEREETEMER
FIERARIZESE  AEKEZERER QA
(—FEREE AT E R 89 A R (AR RS -
1741)) ZHITEERITBARE, ©

AETHABLOFIRER 23 LR
197848 A f£Ho Chung, Wallace Evans &
Company Limited & R & TRAD - HIER
1984 F M BN A TRAD - H18M 19884
SHZE1994F8 8  EWS Atkins (Services)
LimitedB2{T A4 5 T2RD » S 1B IE(T B
U ASMAER TR E T EEBE G/ EE
& o BT HRIR2006F6 AE2012F6 A K
2002F4 A =2005F3 A EE B M AERE
BREIXBREETEHIE - RE2016F38
BEXIABSE T KEBEITEHRRK -

BT ER R DA THE RAEBHKE -

Month and year of approval
of membership grade

HESR EERE] ZERBNMEFEORAHB
The Hong Kong Institute of Arbitrators Fellow May 2018
BAREFSEE 8 2018554
The Chartered Institute of Arbitrators Member January 2005
RN g8 200551
The Hong Kong University of Science Honorary Fellow November 2002

and Technology RER L 2002411 A
NG UN
The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers Member/Fellow August 1983/June 1999
EREIRM2S &8 /KA 1983487, 19996 A
The Institution of Structural Engineers Member November 1982
EEITIZMEE 28 1982411 A
The Institution of Civil Engineers Member December 1982
TARTIEMES 28 1982412
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Dr. Lau has been a registered professional engineer (civil,
structural, and geotechnical) of Hong Kong Engineers
Registration Board since October 1997. He has also been a
registered structural engineer, an authorised person (list of
engineers), a registered geotechnical engineer and a registered
inspector under the Buildings Ordinance since August 1997,
April 1998, May 2005 and November 2012, respectively. Dr. Lau
has also been a first class registered structural engineer of the
National Administration Board of Architectural Registration of
the PRC since June 2000. Dr. Lau has also been an arbitrator
and mediator of The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers,
an accredited general mediator of Hong Kong Mediation
Accreditation Association Limited and appointed as an
accredited adjudicator of Hong Kong International Arbitration
Centre since April 2005, July 2017 and 2015, respectively.

In July 1978, Dr. Lau received the Bachelor of Science (Civil &
Structural Engineering) from University College Cardiff (currently
known as Cardiff University). In December 1985 and May 1989,
Dr. Lau further obtained a Master’s Degree and a Doctorate
Degree in soil mechanics at the University of Cambridge.

Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond (“"Mr. Chan"), aged 60, was
appointed as our independent non-executive Director on
21 January 2019. He is primarily responsible for providing
independent advice to our Board.

As a practicing solicitor, Mr. Chan has over 33 years of
experience in the legal profession. Mr. Chan was awarded the
Bachelor of Laws from University of Birmingham in July 1982
and passed the Solicitors’ Final Examination organised by The
Law Society of England and Wales in November 1983. Mr. Chan
then joined Johnson Stokes & Master (currently known as Mayer
Brown) as a trainee solicitor and was subsequently promoted
as an assistant solicitor and a partner before he left the firm
in 1995. In 1996, Mr. Chan formed the practice Raymond T.Y.
Chan, Victoria Chan & Co. and has been a partner since then.
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Mr. Chan was admitted as a solicitor of Hong Kong in 1985 and
admitted as a solicitor of England and Wales and a barrister
and solicitor of the Supreme Court of Australia Capital Territory
in April 1989 and August 1990, respectively. In August 1990, he
was also admitted as an advocate and solicitor of Singapore.

Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel ("Mr. Sze"), aged 62, was appointed
as our independent non-executive Director on 21 January 2019.
He is primarily responsible for providing independent advice to
our Board. He is currently a director of J&J Investments Limited
and an independent non-executive director of Pacific Textiles
Holdings Limited, which is a company listed in Hong Kong (Stock
Code: 1382).

Mr. Sze has over 38 years of experience in business and
administrative management. Mr. Sze worked as an internal
auditor in Ford Motor Company from 1980 to 1982. From 1982
to 1985, he worked as an assistant finance manager in National
Mutual. He then joined CITIBANK N.A. as a group financial
controller (private banking, Asia Pacific) from 1986 to 1989
and was subsequently promoted as business head marketing
(island central zone — Hong Kong) before he left CITIBANK N.A.
in 1993. From 1993 to 1995, he worked as a head of private
banking (Hong Kong booking centre) at American Express
Bank. He then joined Morgan Stanley Asia Ltd as an executive
director (private client sales department — Hong Kong & Taiwan)
from 1995 to 2001. From 2001 to 2007, he worked as a chief
executive officer (global wealth management, private banking,
Asia Pacific) at Barclays Bank Plc. From 2007 to 2009, he re-
joined CITIBANK N.A. as an investment and product head
(global wealth management, Asia Pacific). He then jointed EFG
International Group as a deputy chief executive officer (EFG
Bank, Asia Pacific) in 2009 and was subsequently promoted as
a chief executive officer (EFG Asset Management, Asia Pacific)
before he left the group in 2013. From 2014 to 2015, he joined
Julius Baer as a managing director and country head (China and
Hong Kong).
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Mr. Sze has been admitted as a fellow of CPA Australia since
January 2007 and was licensed as a responsible officer for
conducting type 9 regulated activities by the Securities and
Futures Commission of Hong Kong since September 2017.

In May 1980, Mr. Sze received the Bachelor of Business Studies
from Swinburne University (formerly known as Swinburne
College of Technology), Australia. In August 2007, he obtained
a Master's Degree in Business from University of Newcastle,
Australia.

Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors had not held
any directorship in the last three years in any public company
the securities of which is listed on any securities market in Hong
Kong or overseas.

Save as disclosed above, each of our Directors confirms with
respect to him that: (a) he did not hold other positions in our
Company or other members of our Group as at the Reporting
Date; (b) he did not have any relationship with any other
Directors, senior management, substantial shareholder or
controlling shareholder of our Company as at the Reporting
Date; (c) he does not have any interests in our Shares within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, save as disclosed in the
paragraph headed “Report of the Directors — Disclosure of
Interests” in this report; (d) he does not have any interest in
any business which competes or is likely to compete, directly or
indirectly, with us, which is discloseable under the Listing Rules;
and (e) to the best of the knowledge, information and belief of
our Directors having made all reasonable enquiries, there was
no additional information relating to our Directors or senior
management that is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule
13.51(2) of the Listing Rules and no other matter with respect to
their appointments that needs to be brought to the attention of
our Shareholders as at the 31 March 2019.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Wu Wing Lun Allan (“Mr. Wu"), aged 41, is the project
manager of Wecon Limited and a member of the senior
management of our Group. He joined our Group in November
2007 and is mainly responsible for the management and
administration of different projects in our Group.

Mr. Wu has over 17 years of experience in civil engineering,
building and construction industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Wu mainly worked as structural engineer and project
manager in various structural consulting firms and construction
contractors in Hong Kong, where he commenced his career
in the engineering and construction industry. From 2000 to
2001, Mr. Wu worked in Shun Shing Construction Co. Ltd. as
an assistant site engineer. From 2001 to 2004, Mr. Wu worked
in Canwest Consultants (International) Ltd. as an engineer; and
from 2004 to 2007, Mr. Wu worked in Realfit Engineering Ltd.
as an assistant project manager and was mainly responsible for
assisting the project manager in monitoring project operations,
planning and site coordinating work.

Mr. Wu obtained a Bachelor of Engineering from McMaster
University Canada in November 2000 and a Certificate of
Engineering Graduate Training Scheme from Vocational
Training Council of Hong Kong in January 2003. Mr. Wu has also
obtained a Master’s Degree in Civil Infrastructure Engineering
and Management from The Hong Kong University of Science
and Technology in November 2004. In November 2014, Mr.
Wu was admitted as the Authorised Signatory by the Register
of General Building Contractors in Buildings Department. In
September 2015, Mr. Wu was admitted as a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Construction Managers. Mr. Wu has also
obtained a Certificate of Building Environmental Assessment
Method Professional (New Buildings) from Hong Kong Green
Building Council in May 2017.
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Ms. Tsang Lee Mei (“Ms. Tsang”), aged 49, is the financial
controller of Wecon Limited and company secretary of our
Company. She joined our Group in January 2018 as financial
controller and is primarily responsible for financial management
and compliance assurance of our Group.

Ms. Tsang has over 24 years of experience in accounting. Prior
to joining our Group, Ms. Tsang mainly provides accounting
and auditing service in Hong Kong, where she commenced her
career in the accounting and auditing industry. From 1988 to
1994, Ms. Tsang worked in Respironics (HK) Limited as accounts
clerk, and was subsequently promoted to the position of senior
accounts clerk and department head of accounting in 1990 and
1992 respectively. From 1996 to 1997, Ms. Tsang worked in Y.L.
Ngan & Company CPA as audit trainee. From 1997 to 1998, Ms.
Tsang worked in K.L. Lee & Co. CPA as audit junior. From 1999
to 2006, Ms. Tsang joined Kwong Ming Engineering Limited
as finance manager. From 2006 to 2016, Ms. Tsang worked
in Mobicon Holdings Limited as finance manager; and from
2016 to 2018, Ms. Tsang worked in K.H. Foundation Limited
as assistant finance manager and was mainly responsible
for providing assistance to financial controller in respect of
accounting and finance services.

Ms. Tsang obtained a Bachelor Degree in Combined Studies —
Accounting from De Monfort University, Leicester, the United
Kingdom in June 1996 and a Bachelor Degree in Professional
Accounting from Dongbei University of Finance and Economics
of the PRC in May 2004. In November 2007, Ms. Tsang was
awarded the degree of Master of Science and Finance by City
University of Hong Kong. Since October 1994, Ms. Tsang has
been admitted as member of the Association of Accounting
Technicians. Since May 1999, Ms. Tsang has also been admitted
as an Accountant by Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (HKICPA). She has also become fellow of The
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants (ACCA) since
May 2004.
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Ms. Hui Pik Yuet (“Ms. Hui"), aged 46, is the Head of human
resources and administration of Wecon Limited and a member
of the senior management of our Group. She joined our Group
in January 2015 and is mainly responsible for administrative and
human resources matters of our Group.

Ms. Hui has over 20 years of experience in business
administration, human resources and company secretarial
matters. Prior to joining our Group, Ms. Hui mainly worked as
human resources officer and manager in various companies
in Hong Kong, where she started her career in the human
resources and administration industry. From 1998 to 1999, Ms.
Hui worked in Pruton Prudential Hotel as personnel and training
assistant. From 1999 to 2002, Ms. Hui worked in China Harbour
Engineering Company (Group) Limited as a human resources
officer. From 2002 to 2003, Ms. Hui worked in WorldCard (Hong
Kong) Limited as administration and marketing executive; from
2003 to 2005, Ms. Hui worked in Fountain Set (Holdings) Limited
as a human resources officer; and from June 2005 to April
2008, Ms. Hui worked in China Resources Insurance Consultants
Limited as human resources and administration manager;
from April 2008 to December 2014, Ms. Hui was subsequently
transferred to China Resources Investment Enterprise Ltd. as
human resources and administration manager and was then
worked to the personnel and administration department in CRE
Properties (Hong Kong) Ltd. and China Resources Insurance
Consultants Limited as human resources and administration
manager and was mainly responsible for human resources and
administrative matter.

Ms. Hui obtained a Bachelor Degree in Bachelor of Arts from
The Chinese University of Hong Kong in December 1997. Ms.
Hui also obtained a Diploma in Management Studies from
Lingnan University/The Hong Kong Management Association in
September 2001.

Mr. Choi Ying Tung (“Mr. Choi”), aged 44, is the safety and
environmental manager of Wecon Limited and a member of
the senior management of our Group. He joined our Group
in August 2007 and is mainly responsible for safety and
environmental management of our Group.
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Mr. Choi has over 21 years of experience in civil engineering,
buildings and construction industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Choi mainly worked as safety officer in various construction
companies in Hong Kong, where he started his career in the
construction industry. From 1997 to 1999, Mr. Choi worked in
Far East Consulting Engineers Ltd. as an assistant engineer.
From 1999 to 2001, Mr. Choi worked in Chevalier (Construction)
Company Ltd as a technical assistant. From 2001 to 2004, Mr.
Choi worked in Hip Hing Construction Co., Ltd as a safety
officer; and from November 2004 to August 2007, Mr. Choi
worked in Union Glory E&M Engineering Ltd. as a project
engineer and safety officer.

Mr. Choi obtained certificate in Hong Kong Advanced Level
Examination in 1995 and a Higher Diploma in Building
Services Engineering from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University in 1997. In November 2001, Mr. Choi obtained Post-
experience Certificate in Industrial Safety from The Hong Kong
Polytechnic University. Mr. Choi also obtained a Certificate
for the completion of the training in Location of Underground
Electricity Cables from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
July 2004. In February 2005, Mr. Choi completed Safety Auditor
Training Schemes provided by The Hong Kong Productivity
Council and James Safety Consultant Limited. In 2008, Mr.
Choi obtained a Bachelor Degree in Engineering Mechanics,
Materials and Design from the Hong Kong Open University. In
August 2012, Mr. Choi obtained the Professional Certificate in
Environmental Management for Construction (Environmental
officer) from Vacation Training Council.

In March 2011, Mr. Choi was admitted as Registered Electrical
Worker (permitted work: BO and HO categories) by Electrical
and Mechanical Services Department. Mr. Choi was admitted as
Registered Safety Officer and Registered Safety Auditor by the
Labour Department in August 2002. In August 2012 and January
2009 respectively, Mr. Choi was awarded the Professional
Certificate in Environmental Management of Construction
(Environmental Officer) by the Vocation Training Centre. Mr.
Choi was awarded a certificate of Building Environmental
Assessment Method Professional (New Buildings) since
November 2017 by The Hong Kong Green Building Council.
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Mr. Ho Chi Ming, Wilson (“Mr. Ho"), aged 57, is the Assistant
General Manager of Wecon Limited and a member of the senior
management of our Group. He joined our Group in March 2017
and is mainly responsible for management and administration of
different projects in our Group.

Mr. Ho has over 34 years of experience in buildings and
construction industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Ho mainly
worked as project manager in various construction companies
in Hong Kong, where he started his career in the construction
industry. From 1984 to 1987, Mr. Ho worked in Yeu Shing
Construction Co., Ltd. as a site agent. From 1987 to 1994, Mr.
Ho worked in Yau Lee Construction Co., Ltd as a site agent/
senior quantity surveyor. From 1994 to 1996, Mr. Ho worked
in Hoi Sing Construction Co., Ltd as senior project manager.
From 1996 to 1997, Mr. Ho worked in Wan Chung Construction
Co., Ltd as a senior project manager. From 1997 to 2000, Mr.
Ho worked in Dynasty Building Ltd. as a manager. From 2000
to 2002, Mr. Ho worked in Gammon Skanska Ltd. as a site
agent and from 2002 to February 2017, Mr. Ho worked in Able
Engineering Co., Ltd as a project manager.

In September 2005, Mr. Ho obtained a Bachelor Degree of
Applied Science in Construction Management and Economics
from Curtin University of Technology.

In August 2005, Mr. Ho was also admitted as a member of
The Chartered Institute of Building. Mr. Ho was admitted as
Chartered Construction Manager by The Chartered Institute of
Building in September 2014.
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Mr. Yee Fei Hung (“"Mr. Yee"”), aged 40, is the Quality Manager
of Wecon Limited and a member of the senior management of
our Group. He joined our Group in January 2011 and is mainly
responsible for quality assurance and management of our
Group.

Mr. Yee has over 17 years of experience in engineering,
buildings and construction industry. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. Yee mainly worked as site supervisor in various construction
companies in Hong Kong, where he started his career in the
construction industry. From 2001 to 2008, Mr. Yee worked in
Hsin Chong Construction Group Limited as an assistant site
supervisor. From 2008 to 2009, Mr. Yee worked in B.S.C. Interior
Contract and Engineering Co. Limited as a site supervisor
and from 2009 to 2010, Mr. Yee worked in Shui On Building
Contractors Limited as a site agent.

Mr. Yee obtained a Higher Certificate in Building Studies from
Hong Kong Institute of Vocational Education in July 2005. In
May 2015, Mr. Yee also obtained a Bachelor of Science (Hons)
in Building Surveying from City University of Birmingham of the
United Kingdom.

Save as disclosed above, each member of the senior
management of our Group had not held any directorship in
the last three years in other public companies, the securities
of which are listed on any securities market in Hong Kong or

overseas.
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The Board is pleased to present their report together with the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The Group is a long established main contractor in Hong Kong
principally engaged in the provision of (i) building construction
services and (i) RMAA in Hong Kong. Details of the principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant
to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) including the description of the principal
risks and uncertainties facing the Group is set out in the section
of “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” on pages 4 to 16 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of Directors’ report. Moreover, the details
of the financial risk management of the Group are disclosed in

note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

GROUP REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman lIslands on 23
March 2018 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The Group
completed the Reorganisation on 21 December 2018 in
preparation of the Listing on the Stock Exchange pursuant in
which the Company became the holding company of the Group.
For details of the Reorganisation, please refer to the section
headed "History, Reorganisation and Corporate Structure” in
the Prospectus.

The Company’s shares have been listed on the Stock Exchange
since 27 February 2019.
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risks of non-compliance with
the applicable laws and regulations. During the year ended 31
March 2019 and up to the date of this annual report, the Group
in all material aspects has complied with the relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operation of the Group. There was no material breach or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the
Group during the period from the Listing Date to 31 March
2019 and up to the date of this annual report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 81.1%
(2018: approximately 91.0%) of the total revenue of the
Group and the largest customer of the Group accounted for
approximately 31.2% (2018: approximately 29.3%) of the total

revenue.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately
26.1% (2018: approximately 25.8%) of the total subcontracting
cost of the Group and the largest subcontractor of the Group
accounted for approximately 7.2% (2018: approximately 7.6%) of
the total subcontracting cost.

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's five largest
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 70.4% (2018:
approximately 54.8%) of the total purchases of construction
materials of the Group and the largest supplier of the Group
accounted for approximately 46.5% (2018: approximately 18.4%)
of the total purchases of construction materials.

None of the Directors, or any of their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) or any shareholders (which,
to the best knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5%
of the Company's issued share capital) has any beneficial
interest in the Group's five largest customers or suppliers or
subcontractors.
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RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS,
SUBCONTRACTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Customers

The Group maintains active relationship with our customers
to explore potential business opportunities and is highly
committed to delivering quality services to our customers on
time.

Subcontractors and Suppliers

The Group maintains a list of approved subcontractors (based
on their previous experience, skills, present work load, price
quotations and historical work quality) and suppliers (based on
their prices, quality, past performance and capacity).

Employees

The Group recognised employees as valuable assets of
the Group. The Group intends to adopt the competitive
remuneration, good welfare benefits and continuous
professional training to attract and retain appropriate and
suitable personnel to serve the Group.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, there was no material
dispute or argument between the Group and its customers,
subcontractors, suppliers and employees.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's profit for the year ended 31 March 2019 and the
Group's financial position as at that date are set out in the
consolidated financial statements on pages 77 to 79 of this
annual report.

Prior to the Listing, certain subsidiaries of the Group declared
interim dividends of HK$50,000,000 to their then sole
shareholders, which was paid in June 2018.

The Directors recommended the payment of a final dividend of
HK1.4 cents per share, totalling approximately HK$11.2 million
in respect of the year ended 31 March 2019, to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members at the close
of business on Thursday, 5 September 2019. This proposed
final dividend is subject to the approval of the Company’s
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 160
of this annual report. This summary does not form part of the
audited consolidated financial statements of the Group.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Details of the use of Net Proceeds are set out on pages 15 to
16 of this annual report.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2019 AGM of the Company for the year ended 31 March
2019 is scheduled to be held on Thursday, 29 August 2019. A
notice convening the 2019 AGM will be issued and despatched
to the shareholders according to the applicable law, the articles
of association of the Company and the Listing Rules.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

To ascertain the identity of the shareholders of the Company
who will be entitled to attend and vote at the 2019 AGM,
the Register of Members of the Company will be closed from
Monday, 26 August 2019 to Thursday, 29 August 2019, both
dates inclusive, during which period no transfer of shares will be
effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the 2019
AGM of the Company, all completed share transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong,
Tricor Investor Services Limited at its office situated at Level
54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong for
registration not later than 4:30 pm on Friday, 23 August 2019.
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To ascertain the entitlement of the final dividend of the
shareholders of the Company, the Register of Members of the
Company will be closed from Wednesday, 4 September 2019 to
Thursday, 5 September 2019, during which period no transfer
of shares will be effected, and, subject to the approval of the
shareholders at the 2019 AGM approving the payment of the
final dividend, the final dividend is expected to be paid on
Monday, 30 September 2019. In order to qualify for the final
dividend, all completed share transfer documents accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the
Company's branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at the above address not later than 4:30 p.m.
on Tuesday, 3 September 2019.

CHARITABLE CONTRIBUTIONS

Charitable contributions made by the Group during the year
ended 31 March 2019 amounted to approximately HK$150,000
(2018: approximately HK$230,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the authorised share capital and issued
share capital during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out
in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

SHARE OPTIONS SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) which was approved and adopted by the sole
shareholder of the Company by way of written resolutions
passed on 21 January 2019. No share option has been granted,
exercised, expired or lapsed under the Share Option Scheme
since its adoption date and up to the date of this annual report.
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1. Summary of terms of the Share Option Scheme

(@)

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable
the Group to grant options to the eligible participants
as incentives or rewards for their contribution to the
Group and/or to enable the Group to recruit and retain
high-calibre employees and attract human resources
that are valuable to the Group or any entity in which
any member of the Group holds any equity interest (the
“Invested Entity").

Who may join

Our Directors shall, in accordance with the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme and the Listing Rules, be
entitled but shall not be bound at any time within a
period of 10 years commencing from the date of the
adoption of the Share Option Scheme to make an offer
to any person belonging to the following classes:

(i) any employee (whether full time or part time,
including our Directors (including any non-
executive Director and independent non-executive
Director)), any of our subsidiaries (within the

meaning of Companies Ordinance) or any Invested

Entity (an “eligible employee”);

(i) any supplier of goods or services to any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(iii) any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;

(iv) any person or entity that provides research,
development or other technological support to
any member of the Group or any Invested Entity;

(v) any shareholder of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity or any holder of any securities
issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity;
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()

(vi) any adviser (professional or otherwise), consultant,
individual or entity who in the opinion of our
Directors has contributed or will contribute to the
growth and development of the Group; and

(vii) any other groups or classes of participants who
have contributed or may contribute by way of
joint venture, business alliance or other business
arrangement to the development and growth of
the Group,

and, for the purpose of the Share Option Scheme,
the offer for the grant of an option may be made to
any company wholly-owned by one or more eligible
participants.

For the avoidance of doubt, the grant of any options
by the Company for the subscription of Shares or other
securities of the Group to any person who falls within
any of the above classes of eligible participants shall
not, by itself, unless our Directors otherwise determine,
be construed as a grant of option under the Share
Option Scheme.

The eligibility of any of the eligible participants to
an offer under the Share Option Scheme shall be
determined by our Directors from time to time on
the basis of our Directors’ opinion as to such eligible
participant’s contribution to the development and
growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares

()  The maximum number of Shares which may be
issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes adopted by the Group shall not exceed
30% of the share capital of the Company in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted
under the Share Option Scheme or any other
share option schemes adopted by the Group if
the grant of such options will result in the limit
referred herein being exceeded.
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(i)

(iii)

The total number of Shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all options (excluding, for this
purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group) to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group shall
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the share capital
of the Company in issue as at the date on which
dealings in the Shares first commence on the
Stock Exchange, being 80,000,000 Shares (“General
Scheme Limit").

Subject to (i) above and without prejudice to (iv)
below, the Company may seek approval of our
shareholders in general meeting to refresh the
General Scheme Limit provided that the total
number of Shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option
schemes of the Group shall not exceed 10% of the
share capital of the Company in issue as at the
date of approval of the limit and for the purpose
of calculating the limit, options (including those
outstanding, cancelled, lapsed or exercised in
accordance with the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option schemes of the Group)
previously granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option schemes of
the Group will not be counted.

Subject to (i) above and without prejudice to
(iii) above, the Company may seek separate
shareholders’ approval in general meeting to grant
options under the Share Option Scheme beyond
the General Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the
extended limit referred to in (iii) above to eligible
participants specifically identified by the Company
before such approval is sought.

(iii)
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(d)

Maximum entitlement of each eligible participant

Subject to (e) below, the total number of Shares issued
and which may fall to be issued upon exercise of the
options granted under the Share Option Scheme
and any other share option schemes of the Group
(including both exercised or outstanding options) to
each eligible participant who accepts the offer for the
grant of an option under the Share Option Scheme (a
“grantee”) in any 12-month period shall not exceed
1% of the issued share capital of the Company for the
time being. Where any further grant of options under
the Share Option Scheme to a grantee would result in
the Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options granted and proposed to be granted to such
person (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Group in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further
grant representing in aggregate over 1% of the share
capital of the Company in issue, such further grant shall
be separately approved by our shareholders in general
meeting with such grantee and his close associates (or
his associates if the participant is a connected person)
abstaining from voting.

Grant of options to core connected persons

()  Without prejudice to (ii) below, the making
of an offer under the Share Option Scheme
to any Director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their
respective associates shall be approved by our
independent non-executive Directors (excluding
any independent non-executive Director who is
the proposed grantee of an option under the
Share Option Scheme).
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(i)  Without prejudice to (i) above, where any grant
of options under the Share Option Scheme to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive Director or any of their respective
associates, would result in the Shares issued and
to be issued upon exercise of all options under
the Share Option Scheme already granted and to
be granted (including options exercised, cancelled
and outstanding) to such person in the 12-month
period up to and including the date of such grant:

(a) representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the
share capital of the Company in issue; and

(b) having an aggregate value, based on the
closing price of the Shares at the offer date of
each offer, in excess of HK$5 million;

such further grant of options shall be approved by
our shareholders in general meeting. The proposed
grantee, his associates and all core connected persons
of the Company shall abstain from voting in favour at
such general meeting.

For the purpose of seeking the approval of our
shareholders under paragraphs (c), (d) and (e) above,
the Company shall send a circular to our shareholders
containing the information required under the Listing
Rules and where the Listing Rules shall so require,
the vote at the shareholders’ meeting convened to
obtain the requisite approval shall be taken on a poll
with those persons required under the Listing Rules
abstaining from voting.

Time of acceptance and exercise of an option

An offer under the Share Option Scheme shall remain
open for acceptance by the eligible participant
concerned (and by no other person) for a period of
up to 21 days from the date, which shall be a business
day, on which the offer is made to the eligible
participant.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any time
during a period to be determined and notified by our
Directors to the grantee thereof, and in the absence
of such determination, from the date of acceptance of
the offer of such option to the earlier of (i) the date on
which such option lapses under the relevant provisions
of the Share Option Scheme; and (i) the date falling 10
years from the offer date of that option.

An offer shall have been accepted by an eligible
participant in respect of all Shares which are offered
to such eligible participant when the duplicate letter
comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed by the
eligible participant together with a remittance in favour
of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of consideration for
the grant thereof is received by the Company within
such time as may be specified in the offer (which shall
not be later than 21 days from the offer date). Such
remittance shall in no circumstances be refundable.

Any offer may be accepted by an eligible participant
in respect of less than the number of Shares which are
offered provided that it is accepted in respect of a
board lot for dealings in the Shares on Main Board or
an integral multiple thereof and such number is clearly
stated in the duplicate letter comprising acceptance of
the offer duly signed by such eligible participant and
received by the Company together with a remittance
in favour of the Company of HK$1.00 by way of
consideration for the grant thereof within such time as
may be specified in the offer (which shall not be later
than 21 days from the offer date). Such remittance shall
in no circumstances be refundable.
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(g) Subscription price for Shares
The subscription price in respect of any option shall,
subject to the adjustments, be at the discretion of our
Directors, provided that it shall not be less than the
highest of:

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet for trade
in one or more board lots of the Shares on the
offer date;

(i) the average closing price of the Shares as stated
in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date; and

(ili) the nominal value of a Share.

(h) Period of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a
period of 10 years commencing on the date on which
the Share Option Scheme is adopted, namely 20
January 2029.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on
a pro-rata basis to the existing shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019 are set out
in note 25 to the consolidated financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the period between the Listing Date and 31 March 2019,
neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
sold or redeemed any of its Shares.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
Directors’ Interest in the Company and Associated Corporation

As at 31 March 2019, interests or short positions the Directors
and chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO") which were required (i) to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
and short positions which they were taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or (ii) pursuant to section 352
of the SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein,
or (iii) pursuant to Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

(i) Long position in ordinary shares of the Company

ERRE
EERAQAREE AN ER

MR2019F3A31H - KRR EERESTTH
ABRARBISE AR EZE(TERE
FREEGEG([#BHRBEHKRE ) EXVEL)
2B~ HEER D REHTHEB()VRIEES
N ER BB EXVEBE TR B8N W2 B EA
MEARRNE) Rz AR (BIER
BEH KB 2 ZEBRSCmAR ESETA
BEHEB 2 E=LAR)  KNVBRIEFH K
HA & 150 B 35218 BB R R Z G FT L AR 2 &)
BREzERZMRERZ AR i)k
B EMRAMSR10EESFRIZ R EMASTT
MEARRNE) R MR BIT

() RERTNEHBREF

al

mp

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Director Capacity/Nature shares held shareholding
EEEH 5%,/ 44 RO B A REBQOBE DL
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (“Mr. KY Tsang”) Interest in a controlled corporation
BHRELE(BRELE]) ARG A E S 600,000,000 75%

Note: These shares are held by Triple Arch Limited (“Triple Arch”). Triple Arch is 100%
beneficially owned by Mr. KY Tsang and therefore, Mr. KY Tsang is deemed to
be interested in the shares of the Company held by Triple Arch under the SFO.

(ii) Long position in ordinary shares of associated corporation

MiE © 22 Z R B Triple Arch Limited ([ Triple Arch|)#f
B Triple Archf B RE L A F B 100%E 5
AU IREES R AR G - BRELEHERR
Triple ArchFT BV AR BIRMD B #R °

(i) RAEBEENESBERER

Approximate

Number of percentage of

shares held shareholding

Name of in associated in associated

Name of Director associated corporation Capacity/Nature corporation corporation

RABER LB AT Es 1 AR A B Y

EEER HBEE A 540 HE R EE IRAERA T DL
Mr. KY Tsang Triple Arch Beneficial owner

BREELE Triple Arch EmEaA 1 100%
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than Director
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BREFUINEERRAAE QR RMD RS

Approximate
percentage of

Number of interest in
Name Nature of interest shares held our Company
hARAREEBN
=1 EEME RO E Aok
Triple Arch (Note 1) Beneficial owner
Triple Arch(FI3E1) EmEB A 600,000,000 75%
Ms. Lai Yuk Lin, Eliza Interest in a controlled corporation
("Ms. Lai") (Note 2) and interest of spouse
REELT((RaL])(5E2) SESEEER R BER 600,000,000 75%
Notes: Lik=3
1. Triple Arch is 100% beneficially owned by Mr. KY Tsang and therefore, Mr. KY Tsang is 1. Triple ArchBl @ RE LA B EHF100%Em - FILIRE
deemed to be interested in the shares of the Company held by Triple Arch under the BHREEED  BRELEWIE AR Triple ArchFT#
SFO. BEOARRRRG P HAER
2. Ms. Lai is the spouse of Mr. KY Tsang. Therefore, Ms. Lai is deemed to be interested in 2. REUTRBRELENES - At - REBEBHRAEK
the shares of the Company in which Mr. KY Tsang is interested for the purpose of the Bl - Wzﬁi?ﬂiﬁﬁ?%?ﬁﬁi%ﬁ%mﬁﬁjiﬁﬂﬁ%ﬁ
SFO. hHEE S -
Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2019, no person, other B ESCATIREESN - 201938318 » B

than the Directors, whose interests are set out in the section
headed "Directors’ Interest in the Company and Associated
Corporation” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was
required to be recorded pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2019, in the opinion of the Directors, the
reserves of the Company available for distribution to
shareholders under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands
amounted to approximately HK$89.7 million (2018: Nil).

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENT

Save for the Share Option Scheme, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into by the Company during the year ended 31
March 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and up to the date of this
annual report, none of the Directors or their close associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) has any interest in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group.

COMPLIANCE OF NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The controlling shareholders, Mr. Tsang Ka Yip and Triple Arch
Limited had entered into the deed of non-competition in favour
of the Company on 21 January 2019 (the “Non-competition
Undertaking”). Details of the Non-competition Undertaking are
set out in the section headed "Relationship with Controlling
Shareholders”
executive Directors have reviewed that state of compliance of

in the Prospectus. The independent non-

each of the controlling shareholder with the undertakings in the
Non-competition Undertaking and as far as the independent
non-executive Directors can ascertain, there has been no breach
of the undertakings given in the Non-competition Undertaking
by the controlling shareholder from the Listing Date to 31
March 2019.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year ended 31 March
2019 and up to the date of this annual report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip (Chairman and CEO)

(appointed on 23 March 2018)
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip (appointed on 25 June 2018)
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry (appointed on 25 June 2018)

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel (appointed on 21 January 2019)
Dr. Lau Chi Keung (appointed on 21 January 2019)
Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond (appointed on 21 January 2019)
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Pursuant to with Article 83 of the Articles, all Directors
appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office until the first general meeting of shareholders after their
appointment and be subject to re-election at such meeting
and all Directors appointed by the Board as an addition to the
existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
annual general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-
election. As such, all Directors shall retire at the 2019 AGM and
shall be eligible to offer themselves for re-election.

Pursuant to Article 84 of the Articles, at each annual general
meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.
Such retiring Directors may, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election at the annual general meeting.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Company considered all of its INEDs to be
independent in accordance with the guidelines as set out under
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed elsewhere in this annual report, there was no
contracts of significance in relation to the business of the Group
to which the Company, its holding Company, or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company
or his connected entities had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 March 2019.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 March
2019 are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The remuneration of the Directors was reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee and was determined according to the
qualifications, experience, skills, education background as well
as the contributions which the Director may bring to the Board,
with reference to the prevailing market remuneration level
offered by companies having similar business and size to the
Company, in order to retain and attract high calibre executives
as the Directors of the Company.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
of the Company are set out in the section of “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 35 to
47 of this annual report.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEMES

Other than operating a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, the
Group has not operated any other retirement benefit schemes
for its employees.

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in an independently administered
fund. The Group’'s employer contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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The total retirement benefit scheme contributions made by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$3.0 million for the year
ended 31 March 2019 (2018: approximately HK$2.3 million).

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the year.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

No connected transactions were entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 March 2019.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions were entered into by
the Group during the year ended 31 March 2019 set out in note
30 to the consolidated financial statements.

INTERESTS OF THE COMPLIANCE ADVISER

In accordance with Rule 3A.19 of the Listing Rules, the Company
has appointed VMS Securities Limited ("VMS”) to be the
compliance adviser of the Company. As at 31 March 2019, as
notified by VMS, except for the compliance adviser agreement
entered into between the Company and VMS dated 25 June
2018, neither VMS nor any of its directors or employees or
associates, has or may have, any interest in the securities of the
Company or any member of the Group (including options or
rights to subscribe for such securities).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” on pages 17 to 34 of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float of at least 25% of the
issued share capital of the Company under the Listing Rules
from the Listing Date to the date of this annual report.
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PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company'’s Articles provides that every Director is entitled
to be indemnified out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which he/she may sustain or incur in or about
the execution of duties of his/her office or otherwise in relation
thereto provided that such indemnity shall not extend to any
matter in respect of fraud or dishonestly which may attach to
the Director.

During the year ended 31 March 2019, the Company has
arranged appropriate insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of potential legal actions against the
Directors and officers arising out of corporate activities.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to support environmental protection
to ensure business development and sustainability. The Group
implements green office practices to reduce the consumption
of energy and natural resources. These practices include the
use of energy-saving lightings and recycled papers, reduce
energy consumption by switching off idle lightings, computers
and electrical appliances and the use of environmentally friendly
products whenever possible.

A separate environmental, social and governance report is
expected to be published on the Stock Exchange's website
and the Company’s website no later than three months after
the publication of this annual report in accordance with the
requirement under the Listing Rules.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There have been no other significant events occurring after 31
March 2019 and up to the date to this annual report.

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young will retire at the 2019 AGM and a resolution
for their reappointment as auditor of the Company will be
proposed at the 2019 AGM.
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REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 21 January 2019 with
specific written terms of reference which clearly deals with its
authority and duties.

The Audit Committee is mainly responsible for (a) maintaining
the relationship with the Company's auditor; (b) reviewing
the Company's financial information; (c) overseeing the
Company's financial reporting system, risk management and
internal control systems; and (d) overseeing the Company's
continuing connected transactions. The full version of the terms
of reference of the Audit Committee is available on the Stock
Exchange’s website at “www.hkexnews.hk” and the Company'’s

website at “www.wecon.com.hk”.

The Audit Committee comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Sze
Kwok Wing Nigel (Chairman), Dr. Lau Chi Keung and Mr. Chan
Tim Yiu Raymond. The composition of the Audit Committee
meets the requirements of Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules.

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 March 2019 have been reviewed by the Audit
Committee.

On behalf of the Board

Wecon Holdings Limited

Mr. Tsang Ka Yip

Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 26 June 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B BED RS

EY:

To the shareholders of Wecon Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Wecon Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) set out on pages 77 to 159, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March
2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 March 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “"Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
statements section of our report, including in relation to these
matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of
procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below,
provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
HRELEE

Accounting for construction contracts

BREEHNNEHEE

ARERSR(E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNELTEINEERREREE

For the year ended 31 March 2019, the Group's
revenue and costs recognised for construction
contracts amounted to approximately HK$787.6
million and HK$719.7 million, respectively.

HE2019F3831HILEE © SEEBMEESHERR
Wk Bk AR5 RI#9787 6 A& BT MT19.7E BB T °

The Group's revenue from construction contracts
is recognised over time using the output method,
based on direct measurement of the value transferred
by the Group to the customers with reference to
the certified value of work performed up to the
end of the reporting period. The contract costs are
recognised when work is performed, together with
any provision for expected contract losses.

AR BEREREIBERESHRD TX TIENRAE
EMERTEFZBENERFTE X BESENEES
HIM R Th R A B DA BE RS R BETE © B AR BTT LI
R @RI AIFRMA OB RBRIE LR -
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We performed the following procedures in relation to
the recognition of revenue and costs for construction
contracts:

BMERITATEF - AEREES QRS MR

e performing analysis of revenue, gross profit
trend and their fluctuations, and cost structure
of construction contracts;

o Hlm - EMBBRERE  UARBEES DMK
EBETON

e understanding and evaluating the Group's
process and control over contract revenue and
contract cost recognition and budget estimation;

o  THYME BEREHAHKENAORARERA
KIBEAEFT RO AR BRI

e testing the calculation of the revenue and profit
recognised from construction contracts;

o AIFBESH MRS KENHEE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Key audit matter
BRELSE

Accounting for construction contracts (continued)

BEENNETEE (E)

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

REEREE(E)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ERNERTENNEEERERSE

The Group's revenue and costs for construction
contracts were significant to the Group's consolidated
financial statements and the recognition of profit
on construction contracts required significant
management judgement, particularly in forecasting
the costs to complete a contract, in valuing contract
variations, claims and potential liquidated damages
and in estimating the amount of expected contract
losses.

BERENREEANRSERKAYE BEREHFAMBER
TEEN  MBEESHWRERERERNEEHE - L
HABAZKRAARAS - AEtEKER ARNERESE
EEEREEE ULEFEHAOEBEESHE -

The accounting policies, accounting judgements
and estimates and disclosures for the recognition
of revenue from construction contracts are included
in notes 3, 4, 6 and 15 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BREESHWREN TR « @A R EFHARE
BHNGE M BRERMTES 4 615

e checking if the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation
agreed with the employers’ latest architect
certificates;

BB &

s RYUBHEFEETZZMmENEER
EVEEEERTEE =D —

e discussing with management and the respective
project teams about the progress of major
projects and the estimates and assumptions
adopted in the forecast of contract costs,
including estimated costs to completion and
assessment of potential liquidated damages for
major contracts;

e HEEELZHEAERFWEIZHENERBR
ARIFER & HBRARPTERA R A5 RERR - BRET
MR AR J £ B A R E R QRS ERHE

e checking the supporting documents of the
budgets on a sampling basis, which included
sub-contracting contracts, material purchase
contracts and price quotations; and

o MBI ABHBENERAXMN  HEREIEA
W MHRRBAOLEE &

o>

e comparing last year's budget against current
year's budget or actual costs incurred for major
contracts on a sampling basis.

o UHBSTAREFHNREEAFENREXTES
HELNBERKAEITHR
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BB RS

OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears
to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
of the Company are responsible for assessing the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit
Committee in discharging their responsibilities for overseeing
the Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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BB RS

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

74

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,

misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF ZE M B GSUMEHRRAEARKEN
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ZEE(4£&)
(continued)

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this HEARBUZBABENETEEGRBAR

independent auditor’s report is Wong Sau Pik. HARE o

Ernst & Young RAKETHENERFT
Certified Public Accountants HEEFED

22/F CITIC Tower BB

1 Tim Mei Avenue IR

Central INFEBIR

Hong Kong HERE22E

26 June 2019 20196 H26H
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
meEnRkEMMEEBRAR

Year ended 31 March 2019

BE2019F3A31 AL
2019 2018
20195 20184F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B RE FET FHT
REVENUE &= 6 980,589 980,828
Cost of sales SHE KR (890,081) (903,536)
GROSS PROFIT EF 90,508 77,292
Other income and gains H AU A K W am 6 4,091 5,849
Loss on disposal of other financial HEREHK AR E 2 Hith
assets at amortised cost CREEEE - (317)
Administrative expenses TR X (47,365) (32,277)
Finance costs BT RN 7 (600) (244)
PROFIT BEFORE TAX RRBE AR R 8 46,634 50,303
Income tax PS8R 11 (9,406) (8,896)
PROFIT AND TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE ZAR#ERIFEAEGLER
INCOME FOR THE YEAR AR EEB AL
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY 37,228 41,407
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE A R#ERIFEF A
TO EQUITY HOLDERS EiheREF
OF THE COMPANY 13
— Basic and diluted —HARANEE HK6.0 cents HK6.9 cents
6.0l 6.97%1
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R

31 March 2019
201963 A31H

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt e THET FAT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y R NERE 14 6,831 4117
Prepayments, deposits and other AR -~ Re REMER
receivables RIE 16 3,492 1,502
Total non-current assets FREEEARE 10,323 5,619
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Contract assets and trade receivables BHEENE S EWZIE 115 246,019 195,271
Prepayments, deposits and other TARTRIE ~ Re RHEMER
receivables I 16 49,912 50,096
Pledged deposits EHTFK 17 20,513 26,349
Time deposits T BIfERR 17 144,888 13,748
Cash and bank balances HE MIRTTHEE 17 29,423 46,649
Total current assets mENEERLE 490,755 332,113
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAE
Trade and retention payables Z SN FIEN EMHRE S 19 118,895 120,409
Other payables and accruals H R RIE R ERTE A 20 124,023 62,566
Loan from a related company WERBE R R B 18 = 8,500
Interest-bearing bank borrowing STERITER 21 10,000 -
Finance lease payables FERT A& T & FIE 22 461 =
Tax payable e A IE 7,793 5,500
Total current liabilities B EAE 261,172 196,975
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFH 229,583 135,138
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES BEERRBDARS 239,906 140,757
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

B REARIR AR

31 March 2019
20193 A31H
2019 2018
20195 20184
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B RE FET FHT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FREEE
Deferred tax liabilities REFIAEE 23 632 476
Finance lease payables e B E5IA 22 598 =
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEARE 1,230 476
NET ASSETS EEFE 238,676 140,281
EQUITY =
Equity attributable to equity holders ~ ANAFERIZFEA
of the Company FE{hRERR
Issued capital BEITIRA 24 8,000 =
Reserves & 25 230,676 140,281
Total equity R 238,676 140,281
L Less than HK$500 * 00
Tsang Ka Yip Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry
BxRE B
Director Director
EFE 3
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 March 2019
HE201943A318ILFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ANRRBEEEAEL
Issued Share Merger Retained Total
capital premium* reserve* profits* equity
BRTRA R E AR RE R R
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
k3 TR THET THERT THERT THEx
(note 25)
(M47E25)
At 1 April 2017 R2017464A18 - - 18,000 80,874 98,874
Profit and total comprehensive FRENREE
income for the year WA &% - - - 41,407 41,407
At 31 March 2018 and R2018F3A31R &
1 April 2018 2018F4A1H = - 18,000 122,281 140,281
Profit and total comprehensive FRENREE
income for the year LNt - - - 37,228 37,228
Additional investment in a subsidiary Ff/& 72 7)1 s A SR AT
by the then shareholders BRRMBIMIE - - 900 (900) -
Capitalisation issue of shares B E A BT 24(c) 6,000 (6,000) = = =
Issue of new shares pursuant to the  1RERMH B EZT
Share Offer (as defined in note 1) FR(EEAME)  24d) 2,000 123,000 = = 125,000
Share issue expenses RDEITHS 24(d) = (13,833) = = (13,833)
Dividends paid to the then BEREERBARRE
shareholders of subsidiaries A% & 12 - - - (50,000) (50,000)
At 31 March 2019 R201943HA31H 8,000 103,167 18,900 108,609 238,676

*

& Less than HK$500

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of HK$230,676,000 (2018: *
HK$140,281,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position.

! D500 7T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

Year ended 31 March 2019

HE201963A31HIEFE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B = THET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING KRETERBEERE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax R F5 BT A1) 46,634 50,303
Adjustments for: g
Finance costs BT AR 7 600 244
Interest income AEWA 6 (2,584) (2,897)
Dividend income from other financial FHiREEEA T EYRE
assets at fair value through profit or Hih e EERSIA
loss 6 - (656)
Depreciation e 8, 14 1,181 1,030
Loss on disposal of items of property,  HEWE « BELZHEE
plant and equipment B ZEHE 8 63 64
Loss on disposal of other financial HERBERATEZH
assets at amortised cost & @ E E 2 Eia 8 - 317
Fair value loss on other financial FiRERE AT EYRE
assets at fair value through profit or HihemEELNTE
loss E18 8 - 502
45,894 48,907
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BHEENE S EWERTER
and trade receivables A (3EAn) (50,748) 13,876
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TEfTFRIE -~ e RE A ER
deposits and other receivables FIER A, (3 ) (1,806) 12,485
Decrease in an amount due from a JEYE F RIE R
director - 130
Increase/(decrease) in trade and B REMNFIBEREMNRE S
retention payables #n, CRd) (1,514) 4,937
Increase/(decrease) in other payables H A fEFRIE R BT B F S
and accruals m/Cad) 61,457 (239)
Cash generated from operations KL RBIFHRS 53,283 80,100
Hong Kong profits tax paid ENEBNEH (6,957) (7,322)
Net cash flows from operating activities #& & /EBNFTSIRE /FFE 46,326 72,778
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERTRER

Year ended 31 March 2019
HE2019F3A31H ILFE

2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
Bt e THET FAT
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING RETHBEESRE
ACTIVITIES
Interest received BEHFE 2,584 3,379
Dividend received from other financial #EiBE=IEAFEFIRNE
assets at fair value through profit or fth & @& 2= B AR B
loss - 656
Purchases of items of property, plant BEME  WENRKREEE
and equipment 14, 27 (b)(i) (3,077) (934)
Proceeds from disposal of items of HEWE - BERZHEE
property, plant and equipment Z TS kIA 588 47
Proceeds from disposal of other SRR AT 2 2 H A
financial assets at amortised cost CRIEE TSR - 14,649
Proceeds from disposal of other HEFEBBREATESR
financial assets at fair value through R E At p & E 2 TSR
profit or loss B = 9.362
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits #EIFFFR A, (35 0) 5,836 (1,390)
Net cash flows from investing activities & EFFTSERE
R 5,931 25,769
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING MEEERERERE
ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares BATIRD 2 FR1S5R1B 24(d) 125,000 -
Share issue expenses M BEITRX 24(d) (13,833) =
New bank loans FIRTTER 90,000 14,000
Repayment of bank loans BERRITER (80,000) (40,000)
Capital element of finance lease FEMHERE SN
rental payments BARE S (410) -
Interest paid [EXNEAYS) (568) (244)
Interest element of finance lease BERESHS MR
rental payments FEE S (32) =
Repayment of amounts due to related  {E{JEA:E A RIFKIE
companies = (60,700)
Repayment of a loan from a related BE—HEEAR 28X
company (8,500) =
Dividends paid to the [EENEGA T EPNGIE S
then shareholders of subsidiaries A 8 (50,000) =
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing B&EEBFTS(FTA)RE
activities HEE 61,657 (86,944)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEReERER
Year ended 31 March 2019
HZE2019F3A31HILFE
2019 2018
20194 20184
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B RE FET FHT
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH RE&ERRESZEY R INEE
EQUIVALENTS 113,914 11,603
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning F¥38 ¢ KIRESEEY
of year 60,397 48,794
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT &XE42RELZEY
END OF YEAR 174,311 60,397
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH He¢RESZENE R
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 2
Cash and bank balances & RIRTT4 17 29,423 46,649
Non-pledged time deposits with original i E R RE|HEH DR
maturity of less than three months =& A &9 3EE A E BT 3K
when acquired 17 144,888 13,748
Cash and cash equivalents as stated mEMBRRARREERE
in the consolidated statement of MEXRMYIZEe MRS
financial position and consolidated EEY
statement of cash flows 174,311 60,397
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS HRAR M AL

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

84

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands with limited liability on 23 March 2018.
The registered address of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman lIslands. The principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong is located at Room 1801-1802, 18/F.,
Tung Hip Commercial Building, 244-252 Des Voeux Road
Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Company made an offer to the public
for subscription of its new shares (the “Share Offer”) in
connection with the listing of the Company’s shares (the
“Listing”) on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Dealing of the
Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange commenced on
27 February 2019.

The Company is an investment holding company. During
the year, the Group's subsidiaries were principally engaged
in the provision of building construction and repair,
maintenance, alteration and addition (“RMAA") services.

In the opinion of the directors, the immediate holding
company and the ultimate holding company of the
Company is Triple Arch Limited, which is incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").
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CORPORATE AND GROUP
(continued)

Information about subsidiaries

INFORMATION

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows:

Issued

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI RE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

1. RARAEEERE)

BERMEARER

ARRMBAB ZFEWT

Place of incorporation/ ordinary share Percentage of equity Principal
Name registration and business capital  attributable to the Company activities
=L AL R BRTEE ARREEREBD T TEEH
B BRI A
Direct Indirect
HiZ Gl
Wecon Holdings (BVI) Limited* BVI US$1 100 - Investment holding
EBRAHE ordinary REZER
17T
Wecon Limited Hong Kong HK$900,100 - 100 Provision of building
BIHRAR B (2018: HK$100) construction and
ordinary maintenance services
900,100 7T REEFTEER
(20184 : RER
100/ 7T)
Wecon Construction & Hong Kong HK$3,200,000 - 100 Provision of building
Engineering Limited 9 ordinary construction services
BIRERERAT 3,200,000/ 7 RUETRERT

& Young global network

Not audited by Ernst & Young, Hong Kong or another member firm of the Ernst

* REEBRABHPEBAALME AR

TP BB AR B i

BIZRERAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

2.1 BASIS OF PRESENTATION

86

In preparation for the listing of the Company's shares on
the Stock Exchange, the Company underwent a group
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”), further details of
which are set out in the Company’s prospectus dated
30 January 2019. Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the
Company became the holding company of the companies
now comprising the Group on 21 December 2018, which
were under the common control of the same controlling
shareholder both before and after the Reorganisation.
Accordingly, these financial statements have been prepared
by applying the principles of merger accounting as if the
Reorganisation had been completed at the beginning of
the financial periods presented.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes
in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of
the Group for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018
include the results and cash flows of all companies now
comprising the Group from the earliest date presented
or since the date when the subsidiaries first came under
the common control of the controlling shareholder, where
this is a shorter period. The consolidated statement
of financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2018
has been prepared to present the assets and liabilities
of all companies now comprising the Group using the
existing book values from the controlling shareholder’s
perspective. No adjustments are made to reflect fair values,
or recognise any new assets or liabilities as a result of the
Reorganisation. All intragroup transactions and balances

have been eliminated on combination.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

All HKFRSs effective for the accounting period commencing
from 1 April 2018, together with the relevant transitional
provisions, have been early adopted by the Group in the
preparation of the financial statements since 1 April 2015.

These financial statements have been prepared under the
historical cost convention. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (HK$'000) except when otherwise
indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2019.
A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control
is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to
variable returns from its involvement with the investee and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group
the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee).

As explained in note 2.1 above, the acquisition of
subsidiaries under common control has been accounted for
using the principles of merger accounting.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ERAR AL

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

88

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The merger method of accounting involves incorporating
the financial statements items of the combined entities or
business in which the common control combination occurs
as if they had been combined from the date when the
combining entities or business first came under the control
of the controlling party. The net assets of the combining
entities or business are combined using the existing
book values from the controlling party's perspective.
The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income include the results of each of
the combining entities or business from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the combining entities
or business first came under common control, where there
is a shorter period, regardless of the date of the common
control combination.

The acquisition of subsidiaries other than those under
common control is accounted for using the acquisition
method.

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a
majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in

assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

(@) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.
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2.2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases. Profit or loss and each component of
other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows
relating to transactions between members of the Group are
eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control described
above. A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (i) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B ERAR AL

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

23 BHEMEERERNEBMBER
HEA

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

AEERZEVHEREAMEERBIATE
PR R R R AE R AT MAERT VBB R

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

TR -

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business BB HREER REH)TE
FE3R(BETA)
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with SR TR 2R AFEMENE
Negative Compensation’ FIRUERTA) BRI
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets BRI RS AR REZE BRI E
and HKAS 28 (2011) between an Investor and its B0 EADE RNAEjg A D E
Associate or Joint Venture? ERIE28H(BRIA) ZRIMEBELE
(2014F) BF &
HKFRS 16 Leases' BEIBImEER HE'
F165%
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts® BB GRS 2R R & 493
F175%
Amendments to HKAS 1 and Definition of Material? EReTERIE VRN BAMTFES?

HKAS 8

BB G ERIFR

(BFTA)
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment BEGHER|E19%  HIESET - Faist
or Settlement' CHEN) JEE
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in ERDHERIFE8E  RELNGIEES
Associates and Joint CHES) AN S 2
Ventures' 251
HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax EiE (R R FT SR BB H T
Treatments' LnREEe) s
BREF 23R

Annual Improvements 2015-2017

Amendments to HKFRS 3,

2015F 22017F Az BEEREER

Cycle HKFRS 11, HKAS 12 and EEg 8 . Fn 0t
HKAS 23 BHEEAE

¥ BRGE
RS2 RESE
T ERIF 235
CHESL

1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019 1 2019461 1 B 5t 14 B4 #) 4 FE HARS A

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020 2 #202051)31 Egszéﬁﬁémgrgﬁmﬁi@

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021 3 52202151)31 E%ﬁz%ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ@gfgﬁqfﬁiﬁ

4 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption 4 %*Eﬁ?ﬁﬂi@(ﬁ Hy ’\‘&Eﬂ}tﬁ{%ﬁ
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to
be considered a business, it must include, at a minimum,
an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce
an optional fair value concentration test to permit a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 April 2020.
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31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

92

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)-Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to recognise
assets and liabilities for most leases. The standard
includes two elective recognition exemptions for lessees
— leases of low-value assets and short-term leases. At the
commencement date of a lease, a lessee will recognise
a liability to make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability)
and an asset representing the right to use the underlying
asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of-use asset). The
right-of-use asset is subsequently measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses unless
the right-of-use asset meets the definition of investment
property in HKAS 40, or relates to a class of property,
plant and equipment to which the revaluation model is
applied. The lease liability is subsequently increased to
reflect the interest on the lease liability and reduced for
the lease payments. Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset. Lessees
will also be required to remeasure the lease liability upon
the occurrence of certain events, such as change in the
lease term and change in future lease payments resulting
from a change in an index or rate used to determine those
payments. Lessees will generally recognise the amount of
the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use asset. Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is
substantially unchanged from the accounting under HKAS
17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in HKAS 17 and distinguish
between operating leases and finance leases. HKFRS
16 requires lessees and lessors to make more extensive
disclosures than under HKAS 17. Lessees can choose to
apply the standard using either a full retrospective or a
modified retrospective approach. The Group will adopt
HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019. The Group plans to adopt
the transitional provisions in HKFRS 16 to recognise the
cumulative effect of initial adoption as an adjustment to the
opening balance of retained profits at 1 April 2019 and will
not restate the comparatives.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

In addition, the Group plans to apply the new requirements
to contracts that were previously identified as leases
applying HKAS 17 and measure the lease liability at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the Group's incremental borrowing rate at the
date of initial application. The right-of-use asset will
be measured at its carrying amount as if the standard
had been applied since the commencement date, but
discounted using the Group's incremental borrowing rate
at the date of initial application. The Group plans to use
the exemptions allowed by the standard on lease contracts
whose lease terms end within 12 months as of the date of
initial application. During the year ended 31 March 2019,
the Group has performed a detailed assessment on the
impact of adoption of HKFRS 16. The Group has estimated
that right-of-use assets of HK$895,000 and lease liabilities
of HK$898,000 will be recognised at 1 April 2019.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected to
influence decisions made by the primary users. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
April 2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG KONG

94

FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (continued)

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 addresses the accounting for income
taxes (current and deferred) when tax treatments involve
uncertainty that affects the application of HKAS 12 (often
referred to as “uncertain tax positions”). The interpretation
does not apply to taxes or levies outside the scope of
HKAS 12, nor does it specifically include requirements
relating to interest and penalties associated with uncertain
tax treatments. The interpretation specifically addresses
(i) whether an entity considers uncertain tax treatments
separately; (i) the assumptions an entity makes about the
examination of tax treatments by taxation authorities; (iii)
how an entity determines taxable profits or tax losses,
tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax credits and tax
rates; and (iv) how an entity considers changes in facts
and circumstances. The interpretation is to be applied
retrospectively, either fully retrospectively without the use
of hindsight or retrospectively with the cumulative effect
of application as an adjustment to the opening equity at
the date of initial application, without the restatement of
comparative information. The Group expects to adopt the
interpretation from 1 April 2019. The interpretation is not
expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date.
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability
takes place either in the principal market for the asset or
liability, or in the absence of a principal market, in the most
advantageous market for the asset or liability. The principal
or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is
measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

BIZRERAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

EXREFBERMML

AF(EIE

RHEREEM S22 EENTERET
RBERHE - HEBEMBEERK
BB REMXMNER - A FHEFENE
REEEEXEBRBENRINEEN
BENIEMHET  ERGEED
SERT  BREEXAENRE R
MHETHRE - TERKRAENTS
BARAKEREAZTSE - EatE—1R
BESRENAHERHERMS2HE
EEFEEESREBRESRANM
R WRETH2EE HRERELE
MEITE -

EeRMEENDTEN B RTHLHE
ERBREENRENSERR - %E
B AEN SRS —EENSRARE
5 R A B 52 B B A A AT
HHBET) -

RSB E A E AR A RE R A (A (E
- MEACHBIEFTERFE - AFE
ENRBAEAERGABBEREERD
ERRAIBRE AR

F432018/2019 95



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value

measurement as a whole:

Level 1 — based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 — based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
contract assets and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to profit or loss in the period in
which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount
higher than the carrying amount that would have been
determined (net of any depreciation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in
the period in which it arises.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. EAS HHEMMZ)

POLICIES (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person
(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or
(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and

the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or
an entity related to the Group;
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)
(b) (continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. The
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises
its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for
its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss
in the period in which it is incurred. In situations where
the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for
a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount
of the asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of
property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual
assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them
accordingly.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis or
reducing balance basis to write off the cost of each item
of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:
Land and buildings Over the shorter of the lease

term and 25 years
Over the lease terms
20% on the reducing balance

Leasehold improvements
Machinery and equipment
basis
Furniture, fixtures and 20% on the reducing balance
basis

20% on the reducing balance

office equipment
Motor vehicles
basis

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year the asset
is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

The land lease payments cannot be allocated reliably
between the land and building elements, therefore the
entire lease payments are included in the cost of the
land and buildings as a finance lease in property, plant
and equipment. Depreciation under land and buildings is
calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
over the shorter of the lease term and 25 years.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and
risks of ownership of assets to the Group, other than
legal title, are accounted for as finance leases. At the
inception of a finance lease, the cost of the leased asset
is capitalised at the present value of the minimum lease
payments and recorded together with the obligation,
excluding the interest element, to reflect the purchase and
financing. Assets held under capitalised finance leases,
including prepaid land lease payments under finance
leases, are included in property, plant and equipment, and
depreciated over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance costs of
such leases are charged to profit or loss so as to provide a
constant periodic rate of charge over the lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a
financing nature are accounted for as finance leases, but
are depreciated over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor,
assets leased by the Group under operating leases are
included in non-current assets, and rentals received under
the operating leases are credited to profit or loss on the
straight-line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group
is the lessee, rentals payable under operating leases net
of any incentives received from the lessor are charged to
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease terms.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets

Financial assets are initially recognised on the trade date,
that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase the
asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the
period generally established by regulation or convention in
the marketplace.

Initial recognition and classification of financial assets

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on their contractual cash flow characteristics
and the business model for managing the instruments.
Financial assets are classified as measured at amortised
cost, fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL") or fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) (either
with recycling to profit or loss for debt instruments or
without recycling to profit or loss for equity investments).
On initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
(unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financial
component that is initially measured at the transaction
price) at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset
not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. The transaction
costs of financial assets carried at FVTPL are recognised in
profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered

in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and classification of financial assets
(continued)

The measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if they
meet both of the following conditions and are not
designated as at FVTPL:

e They are held within a business model whose objective
is to hold financial assets to collect contractual cash
flows; and

e The contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding.

Debt investments at FVOCI

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of
the following conditions and is not designated at FVTPL:

e |t is held with a business model whose objective is
achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

® |ts contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Equity investment at FVOCI

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is
not held for trading, the Group may irrevocably elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value
in other comprehensive income. This election is made on

an investment by investment basis.
Financial assets at FVTPL

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at FVTPL.
This included all derivative financial assets and equity
investments that are held for trading. On initial recognition,
the Group may irrevocably designate a financial asset
that otherwise meets the requirements to be measured
at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch
that would otherwise arise.

Financial assets are held for trading when they have been
purchased or issued primarily for short-term profit making
through trading activities or form part of a portfolio of
financial instruments that are managed together, for which
there is evidence of a recent pattern of short-term profit
taking.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3.

POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement
Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at
fair value. Except for derivatives designated as hedging
instruments, changes in fair value are recognised as net
gains or losses in profit or loss. Interest and dividend
income are recognised as other income in profit or loss.

Financial assets at amortised cost

These financial assets (including loans and receivables)
are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Amortised
cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part
of the effective interest rate (“EIR").

Debt investments at FVOCI

Debt investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at
fair value. Interest income calculated using the effective
interest method, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Other net gains
and losses are recognised in other comprehensive income.
On derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Equity investments at FVOCI

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured
at fair value. Dividends are recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the Group's right to receive payments is
established unless the dividend clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of investment. Other net gains and
losses are recognised in other comprehensive income and
cannot be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised
cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified at FVTPL
if it is held for trading, is a derivative or is designated as
such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are
measured at fair value with net gain or losses, including
interest expenses, recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest expenses and foreign exchange gains and losses
are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on
derecognition is also recognised in profit or loss.

Financial guarantees contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contract at the higher of: (i) an expected credit
loss ("ECL"); and (ii) the amount initially recognised less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Group does not reclassify its financial assets
subsequent to their initial recognition, apart from the
exceptional circumstances in which the Group acquires,
disposes of, or terminates a business line. Financial
liabilities are never reclassified. The Group did not reclassify
any of its financial assets or liabilities during the year.

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement.
In that case, the Group also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability
are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or
the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified
and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, such an exchange or modification is treated as a
derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of a
new liability. The difference between the respective carrying
value of the original financial liability and the consideration
paid is recognised in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9 requires the Group to record an allowance for
ECLs for financial assets measured at amortised cost, debt
instruments measured at FVOCI and contract assets as
defined in HKFRS 15.

The ECL allowance is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive.
The shortfall is then discounted at an approximation to
the asset’s original EIR and other debt securities and bank
balances for which credit risk has not increased significantly
since initial recognition.

For all contract assets (defined below) and trade
receivables, the Group has applied HKFRS 9's simplified
approach and has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs.
The Group has established a provision matrix that is based
on the Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.

Other financial assets are assessed for impairment based on
12-month ECLs: 12-month ECLs are the portion of lifetime
ECLs that result from default events that are possible within
the 12 months after the end of the reporting period (or a
shorter period if the expected life of the asset is less than
12 months).
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when the
contractual payment day is more than 1.5 years past due. As
the customers of the Group are mainly well-known property
developers, the Government and quasi-Government
organisations and there was no history of default in prior
years, the directors of the Company considered the default
rate is minimal. However, in certain cases, the Group may
also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal
or external information indicates that the Group is unlikely
to receive the outstanding contractual amounts in full
before taking into account any credit enhancements held
by the Group.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.

Contract assets

Upon entering into a contract with a customer, the Group
obtains rights to receive consideration from the customer
and assumes performance obligations to transfer goods
or provide service to the customer. A contract asset is
recognised when the Group has the right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer when that right is conditional on
something other than the passage of time (for example,
the Group's future performance). A contract asset becomes
a trade receivable when receipt of the consideration is
conditional only on the passage of time.

WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019

BEAETTEEMM(E)

TREEREE)

EANNRABMERISF  ~&E
BEMEEELD - HRAKENTFE
RRAZMEZRRE BT RFBRT#
B ERBEFESEENTE AR
RIESRREANRRE - R - £F T
BT - BEREMISINFERIEREEE
AEERAENEMRRERRN  A%E
PARAIBEEZBBEIRNNENTE - Bl
AEEIRERMEERY °

HEEMTE

i ZR R A ] 38 BT T DR R AR A AT S 84
EReHE AEEEREFHEES
8 IFAREREENEEAER B
HeREERSMBER EREE I
ERBIRAR B E EFE

BREE

HERPIIV AR  NEEBREERP
WHRE - WAEBORFERIEmK
RERETEP o WZEFBFRRER
H AN R (IR SR B )RR AR ) T7
AR ANEERASEAREIRA
BARBRE AEFPHEENE I RGR
FERR o B R ERIBER T B R m ik
B EHNEEEKSE SRR -



SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Contract assets (continued)

The contract assets relate to unbilled work in progress and
have substantially the same characteristics as the trade
receivables for the same type of contracts. Impairment
policy for trade receivables as explained above also applies
to contract assets.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, and short term highly liquid
investments that are readily convertible into known amounts
of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are
repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Group's cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and at banks, including term deposits, and assets similar in
nature to cash, which are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in
which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

® in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled
and it is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is
probable that the temporary differences will reverse
in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates
(and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in which
significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are
expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable based on the consideration specified
in a contract with a customer for the services in the ordinary
course of the Group's activities. Revenue is shown, net of
discounts. Revenue is recognised when the Group satisfies
a performance obligation by transferring a promised goods
or services (that is an asset) to a customer. An asset is
transferred when (or as) the customer obtains control of
that asset; and when specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group's activities on the following bases:
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(a)

Revenue from construction contracts and RMAA
revenues are recognised when or as the control of the
asset is transferred to the customer.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the
laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset
may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control
of the asset is transferred over time if the Group's
performance:

(i) provides all of the benefits received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer; or

(i) creates and enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

(ili) does not create an asset with an alternative use to
the Group and the Group has an enforceable right
to payment for performance completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by reference
to the progress towards complete satisfaction of
that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue is
recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the
performance obligation is measured based on direct
measurements of the value of individual services
transferred by the Group to the customer, such as
surveys of work performed, or contract milestones.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(@) (continued)
For the RMAA services under term contracts where
the control of the asset is transferred at a point in
time, revenue is recognised when the Group has
present right to payment and the collection of the
consideration is probable.

For construction contracts and other RMAA services,
the Group's performance creates or enhances an asset
or work in progress that the customer controls as
the asset is created or enhanced and thus the Group
satisfies a performance obligation and recognises
revenue over time, by reference to completion of the
specific transaction assessed on the basis of the work
certified up to the end of the reporting period as a
percentage of total contract value for each contract.

(b) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount
of the financial asset.

(c) rental income, on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

(d) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to
receive payment has been established.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the "MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for those employees who are eligible to
participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees’ basic salaries
and are charged to profit or loss as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets
of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the
Group in an independently administered fund. The Group's
employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such
borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income
earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted
from the borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing
costs are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an
entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they
are approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
Proposed final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and
declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own functional currency
and items included in the financial statements of each
entity are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group
are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues,
expenses, assets and liabilities, and their accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities.
Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could
result in outcomes that could require a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgement

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart
from those involving estimations, which have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial
statements:

Claims to customers

Claims are amounts that the Group seeks to collect from
the customers as reimbursement for costs not included
in the contract price. The measurement of the amounts
of revenue arising from claims is subject to a high level
of uncertainty and often depends on the outcome of
negotiations. Therefore, judgement is made to determine
whether it is probable that the customers will accept the
claims and estimate the amount of claims to be accepted
by the customers in order to recognise such claims as
contract revenue.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgement (continued)
Accounting for construction contracts

The Group has primary responsibility to fulfilment of the
contract, quality and warranty of the overall work and has
discretion in selecting subcontractors and determining the
pricing for subcontractors. Thus, the Group is acting as
the principal and recognises revenue on a gross basis. The
determination of the progress of the construction service
involves judgements. The Group recognises revenue based
on progress confirmation from customers. The confirmation
reflects the progress towards complete satisfaction of
the performance obligation, which is measured based on
direct measurements of the value of units delivered or
surveys of work performed. The customers will provide
final statement when the whole project is completed
and may have adjustments on accumulated confirmation
according to the actual engineering quantity till the day of
completion. In addition, when determining the transaction
price, the Group considers factors such as whether there
is any financing component. The Group considers whether
the payment schedule is commensurate with the Group's
performance and whether the delayed payment is for
finance purposes. The Group has, therefore, recognised
revenue on progress confirmation over the period during
which the service is rendered and transferred to customers.

Budgeted contract costs are prepared by the management
on the basis of contract concluded with and/or quotations
provided by major sub-contractors, suppliers or vendors
involved from time to time, the experience of the
management and current market condition. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract costs to
completion, variation orders and contract claims prepared
for each contract work as the contract progresses.
Significant judgement is required in estimating contract
costs to completion, variation works and contract claims
which may have an impact to the total outcome of the
contract and recognition of profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below.

Impairment assessment for trade receivables and contract
assets

The policy for impairment of trade receivables and
contract assets of the Group is based on the evaluation of
collectibility and ageing analysis of trade receivables and
contract assets as well as other quantitative and qualitative
information and the management calculated the lifetime
ECLs based on historical credit loss experience, and on
management’s judgement and assessment of the forward-
looking information. Management applied judgement and
estimates in assessing the ultimate realisation of these
receivables, based on the current creditworthiness, the
past collection history and subsequent settlements of each
customer. If the financial conditions of customers of the
Group were to deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of
their ability to make payments, additional provisions may
be required. Further details are disclosed in note 15 to the
financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their services and has two
reportable operating segments as follows:

(a) Construction contracts; and
(b) RMAA

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit, which is a measure of adjusted profit before

tax.

The adjusted profit before tax is measured consistently with
the Group's profit before tax except that dividend income
from other financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, interest income, fair value loss from the Group's
other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
rental income, sundry income, loss on disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment, loss on disposal of other
financial assets, depreciation, including unallocated portion,
exchange gain/loss, finance costs and unallocated head
office and corporate expenses, are excluded from such
measurement.

Segment assets exclude property, plant and equipment,
pledged deposits, time deposits and cash and bank
balances and other unallocated corporate assets as these
assets are managed on a group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude a loan from a related company,
an interest-bearing bank borrowing, finance lease
payables, tax payable and deferred tax liabilities and other
unallocated corporate liabilities as these liabilities are
managed on a group basis.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to the Group's key management personnel for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018
is set out below.

Construction contracts

BEAH
2019
20195

2018
20184

HK$'000 HK$'000
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DEEE  EERERS

B E20194 &2018E3A31B IEFE
BRAERTEAIRRMS © AAE
EXrZEEEABRENAEBAIRE
DEEREHIWAT o

RMAA Total
REREBIR &t
2019 2018 2019 2018

20195 20184 20195 20184
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000

TR TR TR THET FET THT
Segment revenue par: 6
Revenue from external customers RENDRP 2 Uz 787,552 817,664 193,037 163,164 980,589 980,828
Segment results DEELE 67,888 52,274 22,620 25,018 90,508 77,292
Dividend income BREMA - 656
Interest income IV ON 2,584 2,897
Fair value loss on other financial assets & @BEZIRAF(E
at fair value through profit or loss FIRMEM R EE
AYEEE - (502)
Rental income ALlA 6 24
Sundry income HIBUA 1,501 574
Loss on disposal of items of property, HEWE « HE K&
plant and equipment BHZEE (63) (64)
Loss on disposal of other financial HERAHKAGTECH
assets at amortised cost f & EE EE 2 B1E = (317)
Depreciation, including unallocated & (BIEADE )
portion (1,181) (1,030)
Exchange gain/(loss) INEYE/ (FE) (1,533) 1,698
Finance costs BERA (600) (244)
Unallocated head office and corporate AN BB R b2
expenses F% (44,588) (30,681)
Profit before tax BRI AR A 46,634 50,303
Income tax expense FERHAS (9,406) (8,896)
Profit for the year FERHEA 37,228 41,407
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 5.

(continued)

Segment results, assets and liabilities (continued)

Construction contracts

BELK
2019
20195

2018
20185

HK$'000 HK$'000

RepRER(E)

DEEE  BEREE(RE)

RMAA Total
REREBIR &t
2019 2018 2019 2018

20194 20185 2019% 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000 HK$'000

TER THT TR THET TR THT

Segment assets and liabilities ITHEERERE
Segment assets NEBE 232,924 183,150 64,960 62,649 297,884 245,799
Unallocated AHEE 203,194 91,933
501,078 337,732
Segment liabilities HHaE 212580 167412 27,253 1455 239,833 181,967

Unallocated ADE

]

22,569 15,484

262,402 197,451

Geographical information

Since over 90% of the Group's revenue was generated
from the sales in Hong Kong and over 90% of the Group's
identifiable non-current assets were located in Hong Kong,
no geographical information in accordance with HKFRS 8
Operating Segments is presented.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION
(continued)

Information about major customers
Revenue from each major customer which accounted for

10% or more of the Group's revenue for each of the year, is
set out below:
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RepRER(E)

BFREETERFNEH

REF  RESETEFPIEAEE RS

10%3% A_E RV U ER L FI 0T

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHERT AT

Customer A ZEA 306,033 N/A AN B+

Customer B =ZFEB 177,759 287,593

Customer C BPC 156,711 145,677

Customer D ZFD N/A FiER* 183,728

Customer E ZFEE N/A F3iE B~ 167,331

Customer F ZEF N/A i fR* 108,174
& The corresponding revenues from these customers are not disclosed as the * RRZEZT P KRB ZE201956 K 201853318 ILF
revenue individually did not account for 10% or more of the Group's revenue for FE A E B e I ARG AN SR B a5 10% 3k A E » #iE

the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. REARE T ERE -
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WmKkEMBRAR WS
An analysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows: REBHWKRAITIAT
2019 2018
2019%F 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEFEHH R
Construction contracts BEAY 787,552 817,664
RMAA KENGETRE 193,037 163,164
980,589 980,828
Revenue from contracts with customers REEFEHNHRE
(i) Disaggregated revenue information () WasoHEH
For the year ended 31 March 2019 BZE2019F3831HILLFE
Construction
Segments contracts RMAA Total
pan:i) BEESH HEREEBIR &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHERT FHET FHERT
Type of services BR #5385l
Construction services HEIERRTS 787,552 - 787,552
RMAA KENMGETRE - 193,037 193,037
Total revenue from contracts with
customers RERFELONRNES 787,552 193,037 980,589
Timing of revenue recognition W 25 e SR AR P
Over time —REfEE 787,552 22,746 810,298
Point in time KRR - 170,291 170,291
Total revenue from contracts with
customers RERFE MRS 787,552 193,037 980,589
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6. WEREMIWARKE(Z)
(continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(i)

(ii)

Disaggregated revenue information (continued)

For the year ended 31 March 2018

REFZFESHMWNE(E)
(i) Wi 7 FEER (E)
HZE20185F3831HIEFE

Construction

Segments contracts RMAA Total
N BESY RER#fEEIRE &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT T FET
Type of services BR #5385
Construction services EERRTS 817,664 = 817,664
RMAA KEREETRR - 163,164 163,164
Total revenue from contracts with
customers RERFELHNB RS 817,664 163,164 980,828
Timing of revenue recognition ISR
Over time —EREFER 817,664 18,430 836,094
Point in time F—ErfEE - 144,734 144,734
Total revenue from contracts with
customers RERFELHNB RS 817,664 163,164 980,828

Performance obligations

For the construction contracts and RMAA services
using output method, the construction and
refurbishment of buildings is a single performance
obligation that the Group satisfies over time. The
construction period varies from 1.5 years to 3 years.
As at 31 March 2019, the aggregate amount of the
transaction price allocated to the remaining obligation
was HK$2,212,730,000 (2018: HK$957,958,000), and the
Group will recognise this revenue in future when or as
the buildings are completed, which are expected to
occur over the next 12 to 36 months.

(i) JERIE

REAHLENEESORERE
R ITREREMS  EFES
B AAEETHBETNE—
BHE - EiEH B1.5F £3F
N F o R2019F3H318 - o i
EHRTRANVBECHRZERR
%8 /%2,212,730,0005% 7T (20184 :
957,958,000/ 7T ) + NEBKRE
FRETKRF(TEEARKI2E3S
B A M) ERE B -
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6. REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 6.

(continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations (continued)

For the RMAA services under term contracts, the
performance obligation is satisfied upon the transfer
of control of the asset. The Group applies the practical
expedient in paragraph 121 of HKFRS 15 and does not
disclose the amount of the transaction price allocated
to the remaining performance obligations for contracts

W zs b E A R W g8 (45 )

REREFENHIWE(E)
(i) BAIEE(E)

SLEHIS A PRRE R TRR
BmsE @ BOEERNEEEEE
BEET AEEEBEEMH
HEERE1SHRE12IRNEER
i A ENFEDECELR NRER
AHREA—FHUATHENEOE

with an original expected duration of one year or less.

ENRZEREDER °

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FAET
Other income and gains H A & Wz
Dividend income from other financial & iBEzmiEA FEYBREIHAL
assets at fair value through profit TREERBWA
or loss - 656
Exchange gain HNE Yz = 1,698
Interest income from other financial —JREEK A E 2 EthEmE
assets at amortised cost EZFEHA = 399
Interest income arising from loans to EA£BRETHBENERK
subcontractors and bank deposits RITFFAEWA 2,584 2,498
Rental income HBWA 6 24
Sundry income FIEUA 1,501 574
4,091 5,849
7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BABARA
An analysis of the Group's finance costs is as follows: REERNHEEADITIAT :
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FABT
Interest on bank borrowings ERITIE R 568 244
Interest on finance leases BEMHER S 32 =
600 244

128

WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 8. PBRBLAEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/ AEERBATE M TR (GEA) T51
(crediting): BIEEBETE ¢
2019 2018
20194 20184F
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FTHET AT
Depreciation TE 14 1,181 1,030
Auditor’s remuneration 2 1R B & 1,300 403
Employee benefit expense EERIBA(TRIEES
(excluding directors’ B (B 5E9) ) : *
remuneration (note 9)):*
Wages and salaries IEREHS 73,264 58,807
Pension scheme contributions BRIRESFFEIERCEREER
(defined contribution scheme) atal) 2,828 2,034
76,092 60,841
Employee benefit expense STABREEZEB R
included in contract assets 53 - (575)
76,092 60,266
Minimum lease payments under &R EE THREBE(S
operating leases = 3,625 3,906
Loss on disposal of items of HEME  BEKLEEE
property, plant and equipment 2 518 63 64
Loss on disposal of other financial H&Z#EK AT = 2 HAt
assets at amortised cost CRMEECEE - 317
Foreign exchange differences, net 4NEZEZE - JF%58 1,533 (1,698)
Fair value loss on other financial B iBiEmEZ AT E
assets at fair value through PR E M &R EE
profit or loss NEEE - 502
Dividend income from other FHiRBmE A TEYROE
financial assets at fair value 1t gl E AR B A
through profit or loss - (656)
Listing expenses EmRX 13,134 4,561

= The employee benefit expense included in cost of sales was HK$59,675,000 (2018:

HK$49,273,000).

* 5T ASH S A AN 1 (8 8 48 F B X /59,675,0007%8 7T

(20184 : 49,273,000/ 7T) °
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9. DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive's remuneration for the year,
disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a),
(b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and
Part 2 of the Companies (Disclosure of Information about
Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:

EERRSTRASHMH

RIE_EHAR B2 BB R REHI5383(1)
@~ o) EHERARI(HEEZESAF
wERROIE2EIEBENANFEES
RESTBRABFHMOT :

2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Fees ZH 50 -
Other emoluments: H Ay
Salaries, allowances and benefits e 2R EYEH
in kind 2,933 5,202
Pension scheme contributions RN FT B R(ERRHEK
(defined contribution scheme) =Tl 215 252
3,148 5,454
3,198 5,454

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors
during the year were as follows:

(a) BIUFHITES

FARNBIIENTESTNEEN
T~

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FERT BT

Dr. Lau Chi Keung 2R E+ 16 -
Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond BRANIBIE & 16 -
Mr. Sze Kwok Wing Nigel MEBIER S A 18 -
50 =

Dr. Lau Chi Keung, Mr. Chan Tim Yiu Raymond and Mr.
Sze Kwok Wing Nigel were appointed as independent
non-executive directors of the Company on 21 January
2019.

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2018: Nil).
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9. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 9. EERESTHRAEHMZ)

REMUNERATION (continued)

(b)

Executive directors and the chief executive

(b) MITESRESITBAER

Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total

Fees in kind  contributions  remuneration
& EER BikEsHE
- BYER R A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FTHET FTHET FTHET
2019 20194
Executive directors: WITES :
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip* BRE S - 1,757 146 1,903
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip** B A3 36 S M xk = 658 42 700
Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry** R S - 518 27 545
- 2,933 215 3,148
2018 20184
Executive director: BITES -
Mr. Tsang Ka Yip* BRE S - 1,695 141 1,836
Directors of the subsidiaries WA R E 2
now comprising the Group: MEARIES :
Ms. Lai Yuk Lin Eliza REBER+ - 2,518 68 2,586
Mr. Tsang Tsz Him Philip** BRI - 809 43 852
Mr. Chan Yun Kwong BRI A = 180 = 180
- 5,202 252 5,454
*  Mr. Tsang Ka Yip, who was appointed as an executive director of the x BREALEN01843 23R EELBAD
Company on 23 March 2018, is also the chief executive officer of the AINHITES  INARARIMTTHAE -
Company.
** M. Tsang Tsz Him Philip and Mr. Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry were appointed as = BRERAERERBRELEN20185F6A
executive directors of the Company on 25 June 2018. 5B EZREARARNNTES -

There was no arrangement under which a director

waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during

the year (2018: Nil).

RERNEBEENENXFRBRELM
i ZHE(20184F : &) -
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10. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 10. EBBREHAL

The five highest paid employees during the year ended 31
March 2019 included one director of the Company (2018:
two directors of the subsidiaries comprising the Group),
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 9 above.
Details of the remuneration of the remaining four (2018:
three) non-director, non-chief executive and highest paid
employees for the year are as follows:

HZE2019F3A31BILFEE  Ad&Ee
FHEEREARRIN—RESE(2018
FHRAEENBRARINMEE
=) - HHFESHN XXM - Hi
ME(2018F : —ZR)FEF - Fmm
TRA B RESHMEBRF A2 H M
FIBEESAT

2019 2018

20194 2018%F

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind & - 284 & E¥EF 6,971 3,428
Pension scheme contributions RIKSEHEIHETR 125 49
7,096 3,477

The number of the non-director, non-chief executive and
highest paid employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FINETIIBEANZIFES » JERSTT
BA B R #HER ABEHIImT

Number of employees

EE2E
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7L £ 1,500,000/ 7T 2 3
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7 = 2,000,0007 7T 1 -
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7T 23,000,000/ 7T 1 =
4 3

During the year, no remuneration was paid by the Group
to any of the non-director, non-chief executive and highest
paid employees as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2018: Nil).
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11. INCOME TAX

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman Islands
and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any income tax in
the Cayman lIslands and the BVI. Hong Kong profits tax has
been provided at the rate of 16.5%, other than one of the
Group's subsidiaries, 8.25% for the first HK$2,000,000 of
estimated assessable profits and 16.5% for the remaining of
the estimated assessable profits for the year ended 31 March
2019 (2018: at a standard rate of 16.5%).

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

1. FrB#H

BERSHESREBELES ZHAIR
B AEEBEASRFEREREE
BXEHSEMAEH - BIE2019F3A
MNBAIEFE - BEAMNEREHE16.5%
TR AKER T —HKEBAA
i 5T FE SR i & A 2 H2,000,0007% 7T
AR B FIS R R8.25% =k - M H &4
B 51 FE SR B i M) Al LA B 2816.5% =k
(20184 : IRERE16.5%) °

2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT BT
Current — Hong Kong BER— &8

Charge for the year FAXH 9,604 8,758

(Overprovision)/underprovision in BHFFEE (BEEREE)
prior years BETE (354) 119
Deferred (note 23) FEEFRTE (BI5E23) 156 19
Total tax charge for the year FABIAAS 9,406 8,896

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit
before tax at the statutory rate to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate is as follows:

BRETE R EGTE 2 B A= AE e
Y MBI ERREGE 2 FHIE M
HERANR ¢

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHERT BT

Profit before tax P B A 46,634 50,303

Tax at the statutory tax rate REAEB X ENTIE 7,695 8,300

Concession under the two-tiered rates = k% R TN R (165) =

Income not subject to tax BRI A (84) (437)

Expenses not deductible for tax AR X 2,492 914
Adjustments in respect of current tax of 2@+ B AYENHAT: 8

previous periods (354) 119

Others Efth (178) -

Tax charge at the Group's effective tax
rate BRASEERN R EHHIE 9,406 8,896
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

12.

13.

134

DIVIDENDS

During the year ended 31 March 2019 and before the
completion of the Reorganisation, certain subsidiaries of
the Group declared interim dividends of HK$50,000,000
to their then shareholders. Such interim dividends were
paid during the year ended 31 March 2019. Investors who
became the shareholders of the Company after the Listing
were not entitled to such interim dividends.

Final dividend of HK1.4 cents per share, in an aggregate
amount of HK$11,200,000, has been proposed by the
directors of the Company and is subject to approval by the
shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to equity holders
of the Company of HK$37,228,000 (2018: HK$41,407,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 618,082,192 (2018: 600,000,000) in issue during the
year, on the assumption that the capitalisation issue and
the Reorganisation in connection with the listing of the
Company had been completed on 1 April 2017.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to
calculate the basic earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2019 included 100 ordinary shares of the
Company issued on the date of incorporation, 5 ordinary
shares of the Company issued upon the completion of the
Reorganisation (note 24(b)(ii)) and 599,999,895 ordinary
shares issued pursuant to the capitalisation issue (note
24(c)), on the assumptions that all these shares had been in
issue throughout the year ended 31 March 2019, and the
weighted average number of 200,000,000 ordinary shares
issued in connection with the listing of the ordinary shares
of the Company on the Stock Exchange (note 24(d)).
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LR B REE2019F3A8318 IEF
EAZ - RETRKARRFIRED
REEERZBZETHES -

RKAREEZEZZRERAKRE T4
Bl A2 %EE11,200,0005 7T » A
FRRREERERFEAS EHE -

ARAEEFEABRGERET

AEERERBH 2 S BIIERAKN A
=15 E AL F N 737,228,000
JL(20184F : 41,407,000/ 7T ) LA R F A
B 31T & B AR N #E ¥ 159 £1618,082,192
A% (20184 : 600,000,0000% ) * R & &
AN E1T REARA R EMEBNERD
R2017F4 81858/ °

HZE2019F3A31BILFE - BEstE
BREARRNERE 2 ERRINETII
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B AL 1T E 1T HI599,999,8950% &
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13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY (continued)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to
calculate the basic earnings per share amount for the year
ended 31 March 2018 was based on 600,000,000 ordinary
shares, representing the number of ordinary shares of the
Company immediately after the capitalisation issue, as if all
these shares had been in issue throughout the year ended
31 March 2018.

The Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary shares in
issue during the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

13. ARAEEREABEERER

(&

B E2018F3A3IALFE  FHEER
EXBNERE 2 ERRMEFIRR
600,000,000/ ¥ 38 % - B 22 BE & A1k
BITRALREBREE - BOME
ZERM 201853431 HILFEEH#
i ©

HE2019F N2018F3A31H IEFE -
AEBFWELETHEYENEBITYE
BT o

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. Y% - BERKRE
Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
Land and Leasehold and and office Motor
buildings improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
BE R RER
THREF NEEE  BHRRE haktE RE fit
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR
31 March 2019 2019%3AR31H
At 31 March 2018 and R2018F3A318 &
1 April 2018: 201854818 :
Cost AR 900 1,432 690 2,274 5,836 11,132
Accumulated depreciation ZitheE (900) (1432) (359) (1,259) (3,065) (7,015)
Net carrying amount REFE - - 331 1,015 2,771 4,117
At 1 April 2018, net of R201854R1A -
accumulated depreciation BRE - - 331 1,015 2,771 4117
Additions hE = - 692 1,827 2,027 4.546
Disposals HE - - - - (651) (651)
Depreciation provided for the year FRNERE - - (131) (311) (739) (1,181)
At 31 March 2019, net of 12019348318
accumulated depreciation REHTE - - 892 2,531 3,408 6,831
At 31 March 2019: M2019E3A318 -
Cost A 900 1432 1,382 4,101 6,245 14,060
Accumulated depreciation ZithE (900) (1,432) (490) (1,570) (2,837) (7,229)
Net carrying amount RREHE - - 892 2,531 3,408 6,831
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

Land and Leasehold
buildings  improvements
HE

T RET NxEE
HK$'000 HK$'000

14. 1% - BMERRB(E)

Furniture,
Machinery fixtures
and and office Motor
equipment  equipment vehicles Total
FA RER
BHRERE HRRE E CE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAL TATL TATL TAL TATL TAL

31 March 2018 2018%3A31H
At 1 April 2017 W201764R18

Cost KA 900 1,432 624 2,106 5744 10,806

Accumulated depreciation ZithE (900) (1432) (276) (1,003) (2811) (6,482)

Net carrying amount FmFE - - 348 1,043 2933 4,324
At 1 April 2017, net of R2017E4R18 -

accumulated depreciation HEHTE - - 348 1,043 2,933 4,324
Additions AE = - 66 246 622 934
Disposals HE - - - (20) (91) (111)
Depreciation provided for the year FRTERE - - 83) (254) (693) (1,030)
At 31 March 2018, net of 1201834318

accumulated depreciation HETE - - 331 1,015 2,771 4117
At 31 March 2018: R201853A318 -

Cost R 900 1432 690 2274 5836 11,132

Accumulated depreciation ZEtiE (900) (1,432) (359) (1,259 (3,065) (7,015)

Net carrying amount FHFE - - 331 1,015 2771 4117

The net carrying amount of the Group’s items of property,
plant and equipment held under finance leases included in
the total amount of motor vehicles as at 31 March 2019 was
approximately HK$1,684,000 (2018: Nil) (note 22).
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15. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI RE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

15. ENEERE S BWRIA

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$’000 HK$'000

THET FAT

Other contract assets HEMENEE 10,900 3,642
Retention receivables JEWIRE & 63,583 60,267
Trade receivables B 5 R IA 171,536 131,362
246,019 195,271

(a)

Other contract assets consist of the Group’s rights
to consideration for works completed but unbilled
amounts resulting from construction contracts and
RMAA. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional
which was generally one to three months. Other
contract assets increased as at 31 March 2019 due
to increase in the ongoing provision of construction
services at the end of the year.

Retention receivables are part of the consideration
that the customers retain which are payable on
successful completion of the contracts in order to
provide the customers with assurance that the Group
will complete its obligation satisfactorily under the
contracts, rather than to provide financing to the
customers. At 31 March 2019, retention receivables are
repayable within terms ranging from one to two years.
Included in retention receivables, HK$20,725,000 (2018:
HK$24,697,000), were expected to be recovered after
more than one year. Retention receivables, amounting
to HK$42,858,000 (2018: HK$35,570,000), are expected
to be recovered within twelve months. Retention
receivables increased as at 31 March 2019 since there
were more completed contracts.

(a)

BIZRERAH

Hith G EEBRASERENT
PR TREER R ERERFAZERN
FIR(ARES QU REEREE
TREMES) o REEFIRK A& R
BrCAER—E=EH) 64L&
EERER SRR - HMEH
BER2019F3A3NBEMTTER
FREZERGEHERBE A -

ERRBEABEFPRENIH R
B HERKNTEKE OKX
- ARBEFREBEAEBFIZE
HEMTKBHOEME  MIEAMU
MEFRHFE - R2019F3H31
B BRRBESER—EMFARE
E o Hep - EURE £20,725,000
77T (20184 © 24,697,000/ 7T ) #%
TEHAR —F LA LU E - EURIRE €
42,858,0007% 7t (20184F : 35,570,000
BT FEEER+ =@ A RKE -
HREEZEERAEL - BUEKIR
B&r2019F3 831 AT -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

15. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

138

(c)

The transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations (unsatisfied or partially
unsatisfied) as at the end of the reporting period
related to construction contracts and RMAA services
using output method.

15. ENEEREZBWRIER(E)

(c)

RBERRDEEZR NENOEE
(RETREIFDREIT)NRHE
REE R ENEEA N REE
NEETRREERE

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
Expected to be recognised TREER—FR
within one year TR 1,099,469 781,797
Expected to be recognised TEERR N — 1%
after one year TR 1,113,261 176,161
2,212,730 957,958

For RMAA under term contracts, the Group recognises
revenue equal to the right to invoice amount when
the control of assets or the value of individual services
transfer to the customers at point in time. The Group
applies the practical expedient in paragraph 121
of HKFRS 15 and does not disclose the amount of
the transaction price allocated to the remaining
performance obligations for contracts with an original
expected duration of one year or less.

Included in the revenue recognised during the year,

HK$4,865,000 (2018: HK$429,000) was related to
performance obligation satisfied in previous periods.
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15. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

(e)

Trade receivables represented receivables for
contract work. Management generally submit interim
payment applications to customers on a monthly basis
containing a statement setting out management'’s
estimation of the valuation of the works completed
in the preceding month. Upon receiving the interim
payment application, the architect or the consultant
of the customer will verify such valuation of works
completed and issue an interim payment certificate
within 30 days. Within 30 days after the issuance of the
interim payment certificate, the customer will make
payment to the Group based on the certified amount
stipulated in such certificate, deducting any retention
money in accordance with the contract.

There is a certain concentration of credit risk. The
balances of the total trade receivables from the five
largest trade receivables balances at 31 March 2019
and 2018 represented 82.5% and 85.8% of total trade
receivables, respectively, while 44.3% and 30.3% of
the total trade receivables were due from the largest
customer, respectively. Trade receivables are non-
interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on
the invoice date is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BRI RE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

15. ENEEREZBWRIEA(E)

(e)

B 5 RUGKAIEE A TI2M B
B BEE-REZANTFER
RHIN R BEREE—MHER
48 E—EAMTkr TRAE
RBHEE - RETHNRBEER &
F ey 2 SEEN S BRI 1S & X B T TR
MIREEMEBGE  LEOK
NELPHRNRES - EFPKE
A E o B SR E E1R30KR A
RERABIEETMIICRENZ
BOEMBREARBESONRES
BIMAREBELAR -

FEETEFREERR - 12019
FN2018F3A31H RKEAKE
SREWFIREE SRS BMEE 2 BRI
TH 48 5682.5% 5 85.8% - 1M FE Ut &%
ABEFHE SRR IBELZERS A
1544.3%%30.3% & 5 fE W 3K 1A
TETE ©

RIZEF A RHEE 5 RKFIEN R
BT

2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FABT
Trade receivables: Z F WA

Within 90 days 90K A 169,278 127,703
91 to 180 days 91£ 180K 1,493 1,587
181 to 360 days 1812 360K 172 1,903
Over 360 days HBHA3I60K 593 169
171,536 131,362
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

15. CONTRACT ASSETS AND TRADE RECEIVABLES
(continued)

140

(e)

(continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are
not individually nor collectively considered to be
impaired is as follows:

15. ENEEREZBWRIER(E)

(%)

AR RERRKEBREZEHE
WK IBRRER DATEAT -

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET

Past due but not impaired: EAHERRIE
1 to 3 months past due B ER1 =316 A 1,817 7,687
4 to 6 months past due BHEAZE 6(F A 581 2,206
7 to 12 months past due BEA7Z 1218 A 150 684
Over 1 year past due BERREF 593 169
3,141 10,746
Neither past due nor impaired REEITFARRE 168,395 120,616
171,536 131,362

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS 9 which permits the
use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all
trade receivables. The ECL rate for the Group's trade
receivables is minimal for all the above bands of trade
receivables.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to certain independent customers, mainly
reputable property developers and government
authorities, that have a good track record with the
Group. Based on past experience, the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that no provision
for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change
in credit quality and the balances are still considered
fully recoverable. The carrying amounts of the trade
receivables approximate to their fair values.

Trade receivables that are neither past due nor

impaired relate to certain independent customers for
whom there was no recent history of default.
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16. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER

17.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

16. ANHIEA - RERHMEKRFRE

RECEIVABLES

2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FABT
Prepayments TARTRIE 21,009 7,220
Deposits and other receivables 1&e K H b R UK IR 32,395 44,378
53,404 51,598

Less: Prepayments and deposits B DEAIERBEEZ
classified as non-current assets TEftF B MR e (3,492) (1,502)
Current portion RENER D 49,912 50,096

None of the above assets is either past due or impaired.
The financial assets included in the above balances relate to
receivables for which there was no recent history of default.
Included in other receivables are loans to subcontractors of
HK$29,043,000 (2018: HK$41,892,000) as at 31 March 2019,

L RES A SR E - fFA L
A5 R O < B A E LA AR A B A0 R0 8%
M UKIBBRE - W2019F3A318 -
29,043,000/ 7T (2018%F : 41,892,000/
TOBME T 0 BB E KA AR MR KK

which are unsecured, bear interest at 7% per annum or B ZEEREER  LENERT%T

interest-free and are repayable on demand.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES

BHREAARERERE -

17. BERBITEER

2019 2018

2019 20184F

Notes HK$'000 HK$'000

B3 THET FABT

Cash and bank balances 0 e RIRITAERR 29,423 46,649
Deposits 7k 165,401 40,097
194,824 86,746

Less: Pledged deposits B HEIRTE R 21(b), 21(c), 26 (20,513) (26,349)
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 174,311 60,397

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Time deposits are made for
varying periods of between 1 months and 3 months, and
earn interest at the respective time deposit rates. The bank
balances and deposits are deposited with creditworthy

banks with no recent history of default.

RITRSLE B RITERMELZEF
KB EHERS—BAZE=EAT
F - IR T B SN R RN B < 3R
TTHREBR R T7 SR IF AT A2 WO R R 15
BRIFIRTT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

18.

19.

142

LOAN FROM A RELATED COMPANY

The loan from a related company as at 31 March 2018 was
unsecured, interest-free and repayable in April 2018. The
carrying amount of the loan approximates to its fair value.

The loan was fully settled during the year.
TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES
An ageing analysis of the trade and retention payables as

at the end of reporting period, based on the invoice date,

is as follows:

18.

19.

W ERERE A R E
R2018F3A31H - WEREAE AR E K
REER - 2B KLNR2018F4AEE -
EFREEREAHERS
ERNFRCEREN -
ESRNRERENRES

RBERRREZAH2IINE ZEN
RIBERENRESREDTOT

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT

Trade payables: E S ENFIE
Within 3 months 3EAA 64,424 71,902
4 to 6 months VES(EPS 1 -
Over 6 months B iBoME A 18 18
64,443 71,920
Retention payables ERRE & 54,452 48,489
118,895 120,409

Retention payables were normally settled within terms
ranging from one to two years.

Trade and retention payables are non-interest-bearing.

The payment terms of trade payables are stipulated in the
relevant contracts with credit periods of 30 days in general.
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20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

21.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

HtENRERETER

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FAT

Other payables H < /IR 758 316
Accruals FEETE R 123,265 62,250
124,023 62,566

Financial liabilities of HK$38,074,000 (2018: HK$36,928,000)
as at 31 March 2019 included in other payables and
accruals are non-interest-bearing and are expected to be
settled within one year.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS

The interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of the
Group are analysed as follows:

M201943H31H » 38,074,000 7T
(20184F : 36,928,000 7T ) 51 A EH 4th
F’éﬁ KRIENEFFBRAN a8 E T

 FEEIR —FRER -

21. FHERTREMER

Z

2019
20195

Contractual
interest rate

SEF BRITREMERDITT

2018
20184

Contractual
interest rate

BRRIE HK$'000 BHFIE HK$'000
(%) TER (%) FET
Current Pk
Finance lease payables (note 22)  FEfRE T EFIE (H17E22) 3.49% 461 N/A T -
Bank loan - secured RITER —HEM HIBOR+1.3% 10,000 N/A @R -
BRRT
BAEFE+1.3%
10,461 _
Non-current ERE
Finance lease payables (note 22)  fEfI B &R EFIE (FT522) 3.4% 598 N/A MEA -
598 =
11,059 -
The Group's term loan of HK$10,000,000 (2018: Nil) as at 31 March 2019 contains a 7N & B K201943

repayment on demand clause and is repayable within one year.

318 &
(2018%F - )M R BRI E

h 5 #) B 010,000,000/ 7T
R R AR —FAREE °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

21. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(a) As at 31 March 2019, the bank loan was guaranteed by the Company, Wecon
Limited and Wecon Construction & Engineering Limited.

(b) As at 31 March 2019, the bank loan and certain bank facilities were secured by
pledged deposits of HK$15,513,000.

(c) As at 31 March 2018, certain bank facilities were secured by pledged deposits
of HK$15,000,000 and the bank facilities have not been utilised as at 31 March
2018.

(d)  The carrying amount of the bank borrowing approximates to its fair value.
() The Group's bank loan is denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
f) For other bank facilities, please refer to note 26.

22. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES

The Group leases its vehicle for its business operations

21. FFRBITREMERE

(@)  M201943A318 @ SBITEFHAARAR

DR R B TRERR AN BER -

(b) M201943A831H - ROERKREFHRITRER
15,513,0007% T A HE A TR 4E R o

(© M2018438310  HEFRAME B EHF R
15,000, 000%7117‘1 E%?iﬁﬁﬁaﬂﬁﬁézmsiwﬁ

3B &K EH

(d) RITERZEEEREAFERE -

() AKBRITEFUABITAHE

(h  AEEGRITRE  F2HME26 -

22. BENMEHEERE

AEEREEKEEHERBEMZE

(note 14). The lease is classified as finance lease and has a 4) HESNBAREHE  #HTHE
remaining lease term of three years. HR=%F-
At 31 March 2019, the total future minimum lease payments M201963H318 - EHEEEREE T2
under finance lease and their present values were as RIRFAIEF ﬁfkﬁ%@%ﬁ&“fﬁfﬁﬁm— :
follows:
Present Present
Minimum Minimum value of value of
lease lease  minimum lease  minimum lease
payments payments payments payments
BiE 543y BEHE HEHRE
HENE HEFE HEZRE TEZEE
2019 2018 2019 2018
2019% 20185 2019%F 018%
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FAT TR THT
Amounts payable: FEREHE :
Within one year —FR 490 - 461 =
In the second year FF 490 = 477 =
In the third to fifth years, F=FZERF
inclusive (EEEWE) 122 = 121 =
Total minimum finance lease payments ~ RIERMERERELR 1,102 = 1,059 =
Future finance charges ARBEER (43) =
Total net finance lease payables R R A ERIRFE 1,059 =
Portion classified as current liabilities AERREAEHH (461) -
Non-current portion FEnBEIH 598 -
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23.

24.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

DEFERRED TAX 23. EEBLH
The deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated /:\ e MBI RERNRIERIAE &
statement of financial position and the movements during WE T :
the year are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities FEBIEREG
Depreciation
allowance in
excess of related
depreciation
allowance
B AR E
BENITERE
HK$'000
FHERT
At 1 April 2017 201744818 457
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FRNEERT R
during the year (note 11) IR A (MEE11) 19
At 31 March 2018 and 1 April 2018 201853 H31H &20185F4H1H 476
Deferred tax charged to profit or loss FABERTHRE
during the year (note 11) IR IE (MH3E11) 156
At 31 March 2019 RK2019543H31H° 632
SHARE CAPITAL 24. BRA&
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
Authorised: SEE ¢
5,000,000,000 (2018: 38,000,000) 5,000,000,000% (2018%F :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 38,000,000/% ) & A& EI{E0.01
BT EEEAR 50,000 380
Issued and fully paid: BT RERE
800,000,000 (2018: 100) ordinary shares  800,000,0008% (20184 : 1008%)
of HK$0.01 each FREEC.0VETTA EBAR 8,000 —*
* Less than HK$500 * D500 7T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued) 24. B ()

The movements in the Company’s share capital during the AR RMN2018F3H23R (FEMAKIZAH) =
period from 23 March 2018 (date of incorporation) to 31 201943 A31H EAEMRAE BT -
March 2019 were as follows:

Number of Nominal value

ordinary shares of ordinary
of HK$0.01 each shares
SRMEE0.017E T ZiER
NEBERE B ROEE
Notes HK$'000
5T FH&xT
Authorised: AR
At 23 March 2018 (date of 20183 A 238 (5Ef}
incorporation), 31 March 2018 3 BER) - 2018438
and 1 April 2018 318 %2018F4H1H (a) 38,000,000 380
Increase in authorised share JETE RN 20194
capital on 21 January 2019 182180 (b)(i) 4,962,000,000 49,620
At 31 March 2019 120193 A31H 5,000,000,000 50,000
Issued and fully paid: BEITNERE
At 23 March 2018 (date of R2018F3 H 238 (5Ef}
incorporation), 31 March 2018 3 BER) - 201843 A
and 1 April 2018 318 X&2018%F4A1H (a) 100 —
Issue of new shares pursuant to 1RIREHEITHAX
the Reorganisation (b)(ii) 5 -
Capitalisation issue of shares 1 E AR EETT (c) 599,999,895 6,000
Issue of new shares pursuant to 1RIEAR (D EEITHAX
the Share Offer (d) 200,000,000 2,000
At 31 March 2019 120193 H31H 800,000,000 8,000
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

25.

Notes:

(a)

The Company was incorporated on 23 March 2018 with initial authorised share
capital of HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 ordinary shares of a par value of
HK$0.01 each. On the date of incorporation, one subscriber share was allotted
and issued to the nominee subscriber and 99 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
were allotted and issued by the Company on the same date.

(i) On 21 January 2019, the authorised share capital of the Company
was increased from HK$380,000 divided into 38,000,000 shares to
HK$50,000,000 divided into 5,000,000,000 shares by the creation of
additional 4,962,000,000 shares.

(if) On 21 December 2018, the Company allotted and issued 5 ordinary
shares of HK$0.01 each to settle the consideration for acquisition of the
entire issued share capital of subsidiaries now comprising the Group.

Pursuant to the authority given by the resolutions of the then sole shareholder
of the Company on 21 January 2019, an aggregate amount of HK$6,000,000
standing to the credit of the share premium of the Company was approved to
be capitalised and applied in paying in full at par of 599,999,895 ordinary shares
of HK$0.01 each for allotment and issue on 27 February 2019.

On 26 February 2019, 200,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each were issued
under the share offering in connection with the listing of the shares of the
Company on the Stock Exchange at a subscription price of HK$0.625 per share.
Among the proceeds from the issue of new shares, before issuance expenses of
HK$13,833,000, amounted to HK$125,000,000, HK$2,000,000 and HK$123,000,000
were credited to issued share capital and share premium of the Company,
respectively. Dealings on the Stock Exchange commenced on 27 February 2019.

RESERVES

The

amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements

therein for the current and prior years are presented in the

consolidated statement of changes in equity of the financial

statement.

Merger Reserve

The

merger reserve represents the aggregate of the paid-

up share capital of the subsidiaries now comprising the

Group attributable to the controlling shareholder prior to

the Reorganisation as detailed in note 2.1. The additional

investment in a subsidiary represented 90,000 ordinary
shares at HK$10 each with a total capital of HK$900,000
issued on 26 October 2018.

24,

25.

BIZRERAH

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
S 35 S A B

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

&N

B3
() AAFR2018EIA23R MM - PEAERA
/4380,0007% 7T * 9 438,000,0008% & A% E {80.01
TR BRI » PR B 1R A

BOBEERRETTREREA - MRRE K
E{E0.0178 TLHI9OR E AR f 78 22 ) A 3% ] 384T ©

201941 A218 - @3B R4,962,000,000
BRE A - AR A A B T R K B
380,000 7T (9 £338,000,0000% fi% 17 ) 3& &
50,000,000/ 7T.( 43 4%5,000,000,0000% A% )

(i)  M20185F12A218 - ARAIE AR KT
FIRE(E0.01ETLHSA ERAR - IAST TN
BREBAKAKENER RN EHMEET
BRI KAE -

AN B 1% B ME — AR 3R PA20194F 1
RAE - AN A B AR (7 5 (8 R R 48 R
HEREERFTER - jribﬁﬁﬁz
0178 JT 81 /2.599,999,895h% & i
201942727 B o2 R 31T o

(d) 2019628268 @ BEARIEHE B AR A 7R 15 7 B
R BT E’Jﬁx@?ﬁ&% ?‘fﬂzoo 000,0008% iﬂxﬁ
THO.OTS T 2B Ak - 2088 B RR0.625%5 Tt -
A0 BR 8775 213,833, ooo,’éiﬁﬁz%fﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁ
18 3K 78125,000,0007% JT + H #12,000,0004 T K&
123,000,0007% 7L 5 Bl B 5T AR A R B #ITIRA &
Bt i (B AR - AERARR 1D 1A 201942 A27 B BIA R Bt

ZHER -

e

188
=
BT
60

AEENAEEIBEFENRFERENIE

FHLERUHRENGARRBBE
273 -
AOFhEE

B PR A EARERAR R (G B AT
SEETHBARBEHRARE 5
RRKFE2.1 - RTBA AR EIMNEE
$590,0000% = I% I B 1078 T Y T B A% IR
5 R2018F10826H B 317828 &K
/900,000 7T °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

26. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 26. RAREE

At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities RIEHR - WARRMBHRRBEHERIK

not provided for in the financial statements were as follows: RNEBEWT :
2019 2018
20194 20184F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Performance bonds AR E 24,881 55,608

AL A K EHE A FHABENRE
TRAETRITREERER - K2019
FIANA  ETRFEEBORER
F15,000,000% 7T(2018%F : 11,349,000
B IT) 2 TEHITF SRAETRLR o

The Group provided unlimited guarantees to certain
banks in respect of performance bonds of the Group's
subsidiaries. Certain of these performance bonds granted
were secured by a time deposit amounting to HK$5,000,000
(2018: HK$11,349,000) as at 31 March 2019.

27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 27. Z#aREREBRME
OF CASH FLOWS

148

(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities () METDHEENEEED
Interest-bearing Loan from a Finance
bank borrowing  related company lease payables

e ENRE

TTERTER NAEH BERE

HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TER TER TAR

At 1 April 2018 R2018%F4 718 - 8,500 -
Changes from financing cash flows RERSMBELNE 9,432 (8,500) (442)
Interest expense FERZ 568 - 32
New finance lease MRERS - - 1,469
At 31 March 2019 201938315 10,000 - 1,059
Interest-bearing Due to Loan from a

bank borrowings  related companies  related company

R Wi

TRRITER RAEHE RAER

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TAT TR TAT

At 1 April 2017 201744 A18 26,000 60,700 8,500
Changes from financing cash flows HERCREEANE (26,244) (60,700) =
Interest expense MERZ 244 = =
At 31 March 2018 2018434315 - - 8,500
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27. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions

() During the year, the Group entered into finance
lease arrangement in respect of a vehicle with a
total capital value at the inception of the lease of
HK$1,469,000.

(i) For the non-cash transactions related to share
capital, please refer to note 24.

28. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS
As lessee

The Group leases certain of its office properties, car
parks, warehouses and staff quarter under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for
terms ranging from one to two years.

As at 31 March 2019, the Group had total future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases
falling due as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b E B

31 March 2019

20194%3A318

27. ZERERERWE(E)

b) FEFREXRS

() TR NEBFR—WITER]
VREHELRH  EREY
A S A 7R 48 B B1,469,000
BIT ©

(i) BRALKRAKNERNIFRER
ZB 2R B HRROMTE24

28. €EMELH

EREEA

AREREBESERELHFELETHRA
EYE FHEG REMBREEE oY
EHOUNF—=mFEIGR -

BHERA A NSRRI H RE &
BEESFFR

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTHET FAT

Within one year —FR 2,497 4,181
In the second to fifth years, E_FEERF

inclusive (BEEMEBEEN) = 2,185

2,497 6,366

29. COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in note 28 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments as at the end of the reporting period:

29. AiE

B _E S EEo8EE I 2 2 E R B R A
5h A ER S ERA T 5 E A
i

2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Contracted, but not provided for: BETR) - BREME
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment FRE « £ & R NEKE 1,250 =
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(a)

Outstanding balances with related parties

Save as disclosed in note 18 to the financial statements,
the Group had no outstanding balances with related
parties as at the end of the reporting period.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

The key management personnel of the Group are the
directors of the Company. Details of their remuneration
are disclosed in note 9 to the financial statements.

Included in the disclosure of five highest paid
individuals in note 10, the total salaries, allowances
and benefits in kind paid to Ms. Lai Yuk Lin Eliza, the
spouse of a director, including the in-kind housing
allowance of HK$1,686,000 (2018: HK$1,697,000) for the
rental payment and outgoings of a director’s quarter,
which was jointly used by Mr. Tsang Ka Yip and Mr.
Tsang Tsz Kit Jerry.

31. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

150

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
assets as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

2019

Financial assets

30. BERRS

(a)

EAERETT BV e KRB A8

BRI R RAR M 18P I EE SN - K
£ B T A HAOR I 4 B B A2 7 /Y 1
REFEER -

AEBTEEHEEAEMS

TREEBABRARAE
o WEFHMFBERBENRMEHRER

R FI0EBREERSFMA
THRERERN—RES ZRBE
FEZETINNES  EZRREY
BHEE ST RESEHREDRE
2B 891,686,0007%% 7T (20184 -
1,697,000 T ) WEEEE(HR Y
RESEREHFEEERBER)
e kY -

3. REETHNEMI A

EELMEERREHREEEMT

20195

EHEE

Financial assets
at amortised cost

R R A

TECEREE

HK$'000

THET

Trade receivables Z ZreRIA 171,536
Financial assets included in prepayments, ST ATERIFRIE © R & K& Eqth fEWRIE

deposits and other receivables e A E 32,395

Pledged deposits EHRFR 20,513

Time deposits T BATF 3K 144,888

Cash and bank balances R e RIRITAEER 29,423

398,755

WECON HOLDINGS LIMITED Annual Report 2018/2019



31.

S,

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
(continued)

31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

RESSNESMITAE)

2018 20184
. . THEE
Financial assets
Financial assets
at amortised cost
TR SHA AN
FrEZCREE
HK$'000
T
Trade receivables B 5 e WA 131,362
Financial assets included in prepayments, STATERFRIA -~ e R EAM
deposits and other receivables JEUGRIBR &R E = 44,378
Pledged deposits ERER 26,349
Time deposits T BRfE R 13,748
Cash and bank balances B RIR1T4H 46,649
262,486

All financial liabilities as at 31 March 2019 and 2018
are financial liabilities stated at amortised cost.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

Management has assessed that the fair values of
cash and cash equivalents, contract assets and
trade receivables, trade and retention payables,
financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables, financial liabilities included in
other payables and accruals, a loan from a related
company, an interest-bearing bank borrowing and
finance lease payables approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of
these instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities
are included at the amount at which the instrument
could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale.

32.

BIZRERAH

MR20194F K20184F3A3MHTES /A
B8 SR AR P BR -

ATEME

EREDHNEReMRSEFEY a4
BENEZREFIE  EHRMNFIEAR
ENFRES  StATRNIR - He M E
M EUGRIRR & B EE 5T ARARER
FRENEFERANERBEE  WIREE
NEER - A ERITERMENBEH
R A HERKREERS 2R
ARzEIARERNDE -

TREERBBENATFENBERZRS
(REFHFRHEERINENRSPZ
TANARZGEBAR -

F432018/2019 151



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

32.

<,

152

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair value of the non-current portion of retention
payables and finance lease payables has been calculated
by discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own
non-performance risk for retention payables and finance
lease payables as at 31 March 2019 was assessed to be
insignificant.

Fair value hierarchy

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no
transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities (2018: Nil).

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments include an
interest-bearing bank borrowing, finance lease payables,
deposits, trade and other receivables, trade and other
payables and bank balances. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes to the
financial statements.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of
directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.
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32.

53

DNV EFEGE)

AT TERBRR ARG R FE

ENREE REMNRBERSERIBIERE
Howm A FEDREANEGEBELUE
F - EERREFSE N T AEMNIRTT
FIEBERBEHARRKRIRSREFTE - R
2019F3A318 - AEBEEHEENRE
¢ REMRERERENTBORBRE
FAETERK -

DNHEER

FR - AT EFEMES —HEE —H
MHER  cREErSRAaEYES
AEE I = (20184 : £E)

MR EE B ERBER

AEETXZeMIEABEABRITE
P ENREMETE Re  HIHE
WOk TR I Ho At B WRIR -~ B B B IR
NEAMENFIARRITES - ZF 2/
TEAMFBRBBRERABMEHE

Ego

AEBESMTAEANTERRAREE
Bl RnsEeREkR - EEZ2EMILRA
EEREZERBMECR - MZEHCR
LR ©



33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to contract
assets and trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, pledged
deposits, time deposits and cash and bank balances. The
Group’s maximum credit risk exposure at the end of the
reporting period in the event of other parties failing to
perform their obligations is represented by the carrying
amount of each financial asset as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

Management monitors the creditworthiness and payment
patterns of each debtor closely and on an ongoing basis.
The Group's trade receivables from contract work represent
interim billings or retentions certified by the customers
under terms as stipulated in the contracts. As the Group's
customers in respect of contract work primarily consist of
main contractors in the construction industry, property
developers or owners with strong financial backgrounds,
management considers that the risk of irrecoverable
receivables from contract work is not significant.

The following table demonstrates the concentrations of
credit risk of the total contract assets and trade receivables
which were due from the Group’s largest external
customer and the Group's five largest external customers,
respectively.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

3. MBEREEBERBK(E)

FERR

AEEEERREEREANRGNEER
B HRKFIE - FTAENFIE ek
Hit BRIBEN S REE - KT
EHERLIRE RIRTTHE - WEMTT
REBTEER  AEERBREHRA
AR NRAREERR RN GRS B
ARRHE SR EERME ©

ERETYERBERSBERAGE
NRR - NEEE HRKA K TR
RIERPRIES NI RRKRE P HIN
AHRE S - ARAREESH TR
EFIRhmBERAARR  EER
BRPBEERBANEIER  BEE
RAREWE K T2 IR 7] Uy Bl # B
WAERK °

TR BIFERERAEEZFAIMNEERP
EAEERARINBEFPANEERES
YRR EERTRER

Percentage of total contract assets and KENUTAEHNEERES
trade receivables due from: FEWFRIERER DL

REBEZRIMNBRP
Group's five largest external customers ZA&EE TR ARINBEF

Group's largest external customer

2019 2018
20194 20184F
39.5% 28.9%
73.9% 84.5%

BIZRERAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

<,
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group's
exposure to credit risk arising from contract assets and
trade receivables are disclosed in note 15 to the financial
statements.

The Group has applied the simplified approach to
providing for impairment for ECLs prescribed by HKFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss
provision for impairment of all contract assets and trade
receivables. To measure the ECLs, contract assets and
trade receivables have been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The ECLs
also incorporate forward looking information. Given (i) the
customers of the Group are mainly well-known property
developers, the Government and quasi-Government
organisations and there was no history of default in
prior years, the directors of the Company considered
the default rate of financial assets is minimal; and (ii) no
adverse change in the business environment is anticipated,
management considered that the ECL rates of property
developers and government authorities were approximately
0% and 0%, respectively, for all ageing bands for the years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018. As a result, no provision
for impairment of contract assets and trade receivables was
necessary for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2018.

The other receivables represented loans to subcontractors.
The impairment provision of other receivables during years
ended 31 March 2019 and 2018 was limited to 12-month
ECLs. Since they were considered to be of low credit risk,
management considered no provision for impairment of
other receivables was necessary for the years ended 31
March 2019 and 2018.

All of the current portions of the other receivable balances
are expected to be recovered within one year.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

The Group's policy is to monitor regularly the current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash and adequate committed lines of
funding from major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. In addition,
banking facilities have been put in place for contingency
purposes.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities as at the end of the reporting period of the
Group's financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates, or if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the

earliest date that the Group could be required to repay:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

3. MBEREEBERBK(E)

REBESRER

REB R 2 E REREE LIRHR
HESER  BEEEFREREFEB
RAFEcHMEEAENCEESRE
B mRERRERARBESEL -
A - RITRECEGIERZZA -

TRAVNAKEESRAENRHREHRIR
BANARTRRERE(BRERELD
EXRAEFEFIE - NEEE - Al
RIBEREPREFHREFH)FFEAR
HRAENBIHANRAREE L AEERN
RERH

2019 20194
In the
Within one In the third to
year or on second fifth years,
demand year inclusive Total
B=FZFE
—FAR EHE
BRER E—_F (REEWHF) CHl
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FE T FHET FHET FHERT
Trade and retention payables B S ENHIE R
N RE 94,938 23,957 - 118,895
Other payables and accruals HAh PR FRIE R
fEstE M 38,074 - - 38,074
Interest-bearing bank borrowing & ERITIE 10,026 - - 10,026
Finance lease payables JERTRE T E IR 490 490 122 1,102
143,528 24,447 122 168,097
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31 March 2019
20194 3A31H
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES 33.
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued)

MHEREEBRRBER(E)

REBESRR(E)

2018 20184
In the
Within one In the third to
year or on second  fifth years,
demand year inclusive Total
E=FZF
—F A ERF
RER BE-F (FEEWF) &5t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TBTT TETT T T
Trade and retention payables Z S RENFIER
FENRE S 120,409 - - 120,409
Other payables and accruals H At E T FRIE 2
FEstE 36,928 - - 36,928
Loan from a related company WER B E A R B 8,500 - - 8,500
165,837 - - 165,837

The bank loan has a repayment on demand clause on
original repayment schedule. According to the original
repayment schedule, the repayment date of the interest-
bearing bank borrowing was within 6 months from the year
end. Based on the Group's financial position, management
does not consider that it is probable that the bank will
exercise its discretion to demand immediate repayment.
Management believes such bank loan will be repaid in
accordance with the repayment schedule.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES (continued)

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
policy is to ensure that the Group will be able to continue
as a going concern while maximising the return to
stakeholders through the optimisation of the debt and
equity balance.

The Group reviews the capital structure on a periodical
basis. As part of this review, the Group considers the cost
of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital
and will balance the Group's overall capital structure
through new share issues as well as raising new debts or
repayment of existing debts. The Group is not subject to
any externally imposed capital requirements. No changes
were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2019
and 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a debt-to-equity ratio,
which is net debt divided by equity attributable to equity
holders of the Company. Net debt includes an interest-
bearing bank borrowing and a loan from a related company
less cash and bank balances and time deposits. The
Group's policy is to maintain a stable debt-to-equity ratio.
The debt-to-equity ratios as at the end of the reporting
period were as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

3. MBEREEBERBK(E)

EXEE

AEEEAEERRNEIZAERES
FEER RS R E L &ETE - RN
SETRHERLE  URFHEFERK
Bl

AEETFHERERGERE - (EREHD
—&D  NREEEREARNKA N ZLER
EARNHEARR  TEEBHRETR
EENMBEUEEREEH TEHAKEE
BEXRGERE - AEE P X EMINEBHE
ME)E AR BSKATR S - B E20195F &
2018F3H3TRIEFE - EBREARMAE
1% BOREGEREMELZS

AEENAEHERLRERER &
R L R B ERF R AR A RS
FAEARGEEMESH - EHFREERE
FHRRITERRWEEE R R EFURER
T RIRITHEBRMEREFR - REBMIK
RBEFEBRELERE - MEHK
MER R RN

2019 2018

20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET TBT

Interest-bearing bank borrowing FTERTTRE 10,000 =

Loan from a related company U ER B A Al B R - 8,500
Less: Cash and bank balances W B SERITAEER I

and time deposits T BT SR (174,311) (60,397)

Net debt (EVioE (164,311) (51,897)

Equity attributable to equity holders RARIERFFEA
of the Company JEAE = 238,676 140,281
Debt-to-equity B L X N/A RNEA N/A i

BIZRERAH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
b i

31 March 2019
20194 3A31H

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. KA TN BARRE
COMPANY

BRAAR RN E HIRAO BRI R

Information about the statement of financial position of the

Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: BRI
2019 2018
20194 20184
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T
NON-CURRENT ASSET FRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary RHT B A R E = =
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Prepayments, deposits and FERFRIE ~ Re REMEWEIA
other receivables 97 =
Time deposits EHFR 116,825 =
Cash and bank balances W& RIRTTEER 275 -
Total current assets MEEELTE 117,197 =
CURRENT LIABILITY nREEE
Due to a subsidiary JE AT BT /B8 2 7] 19,466 =
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFEE 97,731 -
Net assets BEFE 97,731 =
EQUITY =
Issued capital BEITRA 8,000 =
Reserves (Note) A ) 89,731 -
Total equity AR 97,731 =

& Less than HK$500.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ISR MY EE

31 March 2019
20194%3A318

34. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 34. ZA RN ERRAT(EZ
COMPANY (continued)

Note: Btz -
A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RAREBRENT -
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
R AP E RitEE At
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 23 March 2018 (date of incorporation), 31 March 72018438238 ( & ft ik 32 B
2018 and 1 April 2018 H3) - 201843 A31H &20184
4818 - - -
Loss and total comprehensive expense for the year FEBEREEY B - (13,436) (13,436)
Capitalisation issue of shares BB EAREEST (6,000) - (6,000)
Issue of new shares pursuant to the Share Offer IRARAR 1) B BATHAR 123,000 - 123,000
Share issue expenses R {n 3 1TR (13,833) = (13,833)
At 31 March 2019 201943 A31H 103,167 (13,436) 89,731
35. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 35. L /EMBHRE
The financial statements were approved and authorised for HBBMEREN2019F6H26BEEEE
issue by the board of directors on 26 June 2019. HEfE R RT3 -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BEHE

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the ASEBEMETBREESFHNEENUNLE
Group for each of the last four financial years is set out below: ERBEREHIIMNT

Results for the year ended 31 March
BE3H31HLFERNEE

2019 2018 2017 2016

20194 20184 20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHEIT THT T

Revenue Wz 980,589 980,828 722,075 422,319

Cost of sales SHERAR (890,081) (903,536) (665,747) (379,764)

Gross profit EH 90,508 77,292 56,328 42,555

Other income and gains HEMA R e 4,091 5,849 6,926 5,014
Loss on disposal of other financial R A AT E 2

assets at amortised cost Hih s mEEZEE = (317) - -

Administrative expenses THAX (47,365) (32,277) (24,628) (23,473)

Finance costs B TSR AR (600) (244) (512) (383)

Profit before tax BR A5 A8 A 46,634 50,303 38,114 23,713

Income tax FT{S %% (9,406) (8,896) (6,296) (3,505)

Profit and total comprehensive FRRFREE
income for the year W A 42 %8 37,228 41,407 31,818 20,208
As at 31 March
M3A31H

2019 2018 2017 2016

20194 20184 20174 20164

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FHIT T FHIT

Total assets BEREE 501,078 337,732 376,749 211,532

Total liabilities BfEREE (262,402) (197,451) (277,875) (144,476)

Total equity ks 238,676 140,281 98,874 67,056
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